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Introduction

Revenue by Division

Parcels Mail Speclalist

Business Post is one of the largest
integrated parcel, mail and logistics
services companies within the UK and
the leading alternative to Royal Mail for
business mail requirements

Business Post offers customers a full range of time-sensitive and secure
delwery options for parcels, letters and pallets  The Group 1S orgamsed mio
three distinct divisions - Parcels, Mail and Specialist Services

Parcels 1s the largest division, with revenue of £179 8m in the year ended
31 March 2008, representing 50% of the Group total Offering primanly next
day business-to-busingss, business-lo-consumer and international
collection and delivery services  Parcels operates through an extensive
national network of 55 UK sites using 3 500 vehicles This unrvalied
mfrastruciure underpins the Group’s wide-ranging service ofiening
supporting all parce!, mait and palfet defivery optians

Operating Profit by Division
(Pre-central costs*)

Parcels Mail Specialist
“£12 2 million

Mail, comprising UK Mail, was the first orgamisation 1o be licensed by
Postcomm, the ndependent regulator, to prowide a competitive postal
service throughout the UK. B 15 the Group's fastest growing dwision
collecting up to eleven m:llion mail lems a day for over 700 customers,
meluding some of the UK's iggest mailers, and achieved revenue 1n the
year ended 31 March 2008 of £137 3m representing 38% o the Group tolal
As well as prowding a iwo-day time-defimie delivery service UK Mail also
offers a range of ather value added services for its customers and continues
to launch new product innovations

Specialist Services consistng of the Group's same-day couner, logistics
and pallets services generated revenue of £41 5m representing 12% of the
Group total Specialist Services offer a range of fulfilment services,
including ad hec, coniract and international couner, logistics and technical
couner sofuttans such as delivery swap-out and high value installatton
services UK Pallets prowides a dedicated pallet delivery solution operating
through a network of more than 80 independent distnbution and logistics
speciahsts with a range of nexi-day and three-gay delivery gplions

All the diwisions share a reputation for high qualiy detivery performance and
excellence n customer service, using mformation systems that are at the
forefront of the industry
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The Chairman’s
Statement

| am pleased to report another year of
good progress as we seek to establish
ourselves as the UK's leading
integrated postal group

Our Mail business has achieved an 11% market share in only its fourth year
of eperation, our Parcels busingss 15 now responding well to the recovery
programme and Specialist Services has recently won a number of major
contracts

We have also signdicantly strengihened our management ieams and
installed ways of working which integrate our businesses

Results

Group revenug increased by 10% to £359m (2007 £326m) The main factor
was the continued excellent growth of UK Mail where revenues increased by
52% to £137m (2007 £90m)

Operating profl before exceptional tems ingreased to £14 5m (2007
£12 1m) This performance 1s driven by hurther strong profit growth in UK Mail
Parcels has also improved 1ts profit, despite the tesmnation of the Federal
Express contract n Apni 2007

Profit before taxation for the year was £14 2m (£2007 £9 8m)

Business

Qur Parcels business 1s one of the leading express parcels camers in the UK
The majonty of our parcels revenues are denived from our conceniration on the
busingss-to-business market, which represents same 80% of our parcels
revenues  This area of our business has achieved revenue growth of 6% for the
year and has continued to outperform the market levels of growth This is whese
our focus will remain

Our smaller business-io-consumer business however, has seen revenues
dechne This decline 15 largely due to a shift in the market towards 'hiestyle’
couners who provide lower sérvice levels We continug 10 see apportunities in
this market paricularty for customess thal require a premium service

We have restructured our Parcels operations such that of our 55 sites, 44 are
owned and 11 are franchised  Three years ago 35 of our siles were franchised
The remaining franchise operations all trade profitably and are an important
camponent of our operation

Our Mail busingss, UK Mad, 15 a leading supplier n the mail market We have
invested sigmificanily noducing a nationwide network of mail sorfaton
machines  Mail 1$ sent through the same network as parcels altowing us to
optimise our operations

As we reach the fourth anmversary of the creation of UK Matl we now collect
seme 11% of the mail m the UK and have achigved an operating profit of £10m
We see excellent growth prospects as we continue to provde high levels of
service and product innovation for our customers

Specialisi Services serve an mportant rofe by prowding additonal dehvery
options to customers  These senvces, principally in the areas of couner and
pallet distnbution are becoming inereasingly valuable fo the Group and our
customers and we have recently waon a number of new contracts

Strategy

Our sirategy 15 to become the UK's leading integrated posial group  There are
clear opportunities to prowide integrated senvices across the markets we
service  We have developed a plan to exploit these opportunities and ! am
pleased with the progress being made

Board of direclors

Dennis Clark will retire as non-executive dirgctor n July 2008, having joined
the Board in October 1998  On behall of the Board § would like to thank Dennis
for his much valugd adwice over thal penod and wish lam well in his retrement
We have started the process of apponting a successor to Dennis, and expect
i have compleied this process by July 2008

Dividends

The Board recommend a final dividend of 10 8p per share (2007 10 8p) gvng
a total divdend for the year of 17 2p per share (2007 17 2p)

Staff and associates

b would like to thank all of our staff, and our associates working with our
franchises operations and our pallet network for the sireng support they have
prowided throughout the year

Quttook

We have made good progress during the period which has resulied in a much
improved financial performance  Qur strategy of ¢reating an wmtegrated offering
15 well developed and starfing to deliver benefits across the Group  Qur focus
remains to dnve the recovery of our Parce!s busingss and to continue the strang
growth 1n our Mas! business where we are seeking to broaden our product
portialio to attract a significantly wider range of maif users

The start of the new financra! year has been encouraging with trading i the
early weeks i ling with management's expectations

Peter Kane
Charrman é




Highlights

Group revenues up 10% to £359m (2007 £326m})

Group revenues excluding Federal Express up 16 5%

UK Mail revenues up 52% to £137m (2007 £90m)

Profit before tax up 45% to £14.2m (2007 £9 8m)

Basic earnings per share up 41% to 18 Op (2007 12 8p)

vVi|iv v v | VvV |V

Final dividend of 10 8p per share (2007 10 8p)
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« Business to Business revenue growth of 6%
» Parcels operating margin increased by 0.8% to 8.6%

» Substantial progress with improving efficiency and effectiveness
of parcels operation




Business Review

Parcels

The recovery in our Parcels business
has continued and we are confident
of maintaining the momentum we
have seen this year.

The Group has made good progress i the year UK Mail has again grown
strongly, with a number of significani contract wins  The recovery in our
Parcels busingss has centinued and we are confident of mantaiming the
momenium we have seen this year Qur Specialist Services cournier
busmess has undergone a year of change as the new management team has
re-focused the business  New contract wins mean that Couner 15 back on
track for improved performance

We have achieved a significantly improved financral performance compared
to last year Group revenues grew by 10 1% to £358 6m and prafit before
tax at £14 2mwas 44 9% up on last year This profit Ingrease was achieved
despiie the termination of the Federal Express contract in April 2007

Our aim 15 for Business Post (o become the UK's leading mdependent
integraled postal group  In suppert of this objective we have devetoped a
more integrated management approach, a much greater degree of customer
onentation and conlinued product mnovation, all of which are serving to
reinforce our market leadership and differentiated posiiomng  Our sales,
marketing and custemer relalions teams are now {ully integraied across our
Parcels, Mai! and Specialist businesses  This iniegration has started to
deliver benefits in the form of revenues and profits as we buitd on our strong
customer relationships to create new opportuniiies acioss our business

Parcels

Revenues tn Parcels which comprises the Group § business-io-business,
busmess-to-consumer and mtermational parce! delivery service, were up 2%
for the year on a lke-for-lke basis (excluding the revenues from the
terminated Federal Express contract) Reported revenues were 7 2% lower
at £179 8m (2007 £193 8m)

Parcel's reported operating profit increased by 2% to £154m  Parcel's
cperating margin increased by 0 8% to 86%

Business-to-bustness, which represenis approximately 80% of our Parcels
revenues, has achieved good growth for the year with revenues up some 6%
This strong performance has been driven by continued high levels of
customer service and inngvative product offenings

Business-to-consumer revenues, which iepresent approximately 15% of our
Parcels revenues, were down some 7% inthe penrod  The first thiee quarters
of the year were particularly challenging tn business-to-consumer,
reflecting a more competitive market  However, we have seen an improved
trend of performance in the fourth quarter We continue ta focus on the
attractive opportunsties that exist for us n this market, particularly with
customers that requice a premiom service

We have made substantial progress with our plans to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of aur parcets operalion - leading fo the reported Increase
gperating margin  In paricular we have further improved the efficiency of our
overnight inchaul operation and implemented new technology 1o improve the
eftectiveness of our delivenes and our customer senice

In December 2007 we appoinied a new Network Operations Director to hetp
drive the necessary changes through the dwision  Following his
appoiniment we have restruciured Parcels’ management team to increase
the focus on improving operational performance and customer service
levels We have also reviewed our cuslomer Service operation and
established new specialist customer care centres to improve cuslomer
support and reduce operating costs

There 1s still more to do 1n our Parcels business to achieve our margin and
efficiency targets
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« UK Mail share of total mail market doubled to 11%
» Major new contract wins

« Significant product innovation




Business Review

Mail

A vital element of our success in this
market has been product innovation
which allows us to grow the
available market

UK Mail showed further strong growth  We have enjoyed continued success
In attraching new business, as a result of which, revenues rose 52% o
£137 3m (2007 £90 3m)

UK Mail operating profils were up 56% to £10 Om (2007 £6 4m), reflecting
the strong revenue growth combined with a slight increase in the aperating
margin tg 7 3% (2007 7 1%)

On 10 May 2008, UK Mail reached the faurth anniversary of its frading It
has now developed into the teading player in the ‘Downstream Access’
market, with a market share, by volume coliected, of some 11%

We have achieved this growth through providing industry leading customer
service levels and technology solutions combined with unrivalled product
innovation  We have won a signiftcant number ef new customers in the year
including MBNA and Virgin Medsa  We have also continued to win further
business from exishing customers and renewed a number of major
coniracts

To gan cntical mass, our nial focus has been on secuning contracts with
large corporate customers Through our product inovation and integrated
sales operalion, we are now Increasingly able to offer our Mail service o a
sigificantly wider market

A wial element of our success has been product innovation  We are about
1o launch three furlher new products 1Mail , ‘disguised mail’ and ‘returned
mall

Mail 15 a hybrid next day mail semace allowing customers of any size to
electronacally transmit mail items to our national network of mail centres At
these centres the mail is ponted, enveloped and sent for next day delivery
We estimate this service reduces the ‘carbon footpnnt’ of a letter by some
80% as well as prowsding later deadlines for submission of mail and reduced
cosis lor our gustomers

In December 2007 the Government announced a review of the Postal
Market The Intenm report published in May 2008 outlined the terms of
seference to enable decisions {0 be made on the future of Royal Mail, its
Universal Service Offenng and financial stability The review highlighied
that competition, namely Access operators, have provided innovation to
large mail users, but that consumers had yet to benefit from competition,
although 1t also cited UX Mad's “IMail as a future annovation for that
market The final report 1s expected in autumn 2008

We have submsted our response to the review with ihe proposal lor
‘Commercral Equivalence” which would segregate the selling and
distribution elements of Royal Maill We believe this proposal wilt
incentivise the Royal Marl network to become more efficient and profitable
It will alsp incentivise Roval Mail to market products to ACGESS operators as
a true wholesale channe! lo masket, as now seen in the telecomms indusiry
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« UK Pallets revenues up 4%
* Pallets network strengthens further

 Courier major contract wins




Business Review

Specialist

We see significant further
opportunities for this business,
now trading under the UK Mail
brand, to benefit from existing
customer relationships elsewhere
in the Group, particularly in the
financial services sector.

Overall revenues In Specialist Services, compnsing our nationwrde
palletised goods delivery service (UK Pallefs) and same-day couner
activities (UK Mail - Coungr), semained unchanged year on year at £41 5m
However, revenues are now incrzasing, with the fourth quarier showing
growth

Overall, Specialist Services operating profits reduced by 35% to £1 3m
This decrease reflects the reduction in revenues and operating margms n
the Couner business duning this period of reorganisation

UK Pallets

UK Pallets agan performed well, with revenues up 4% to £30 4m (2007
£29 1m), driven by improvements i the quality of the pallet network,
management and marketing mitiatives

The market for palletised distnbution i the UK continues 1o grow reflecting
a shift in the logistics indusiry towards the use of these arrangements for the
movement of partial loads of palletised freight

In the year we have grown our member network to 80 members and we
continue to strengthen the network and mprove coverage  This improved
network hes allowed us to increase the scape and quahiy of the services
provided by UK Pallets to iis custamers

The business has benefited In the year from the in¢reased focus on the
fundamentals of safety, accuracy and centrol in the presentation and
handling of freight shipped through the system  This has resulted in an
tncreased retention and devefopment of customers throughout the natwark

Courler

Revenues in our Courier busingss reduced by 10% to £11 1m (2007
£12 4m)

fn March 2007 we changed the management of our Couner business The
renewed strategy 1s to develop a nationwide network of couriers to allow us
to win ang effectively support national courier contracts This stralegy 1S
naw working and we have recently won a number of major contracts,
including a contract with Orange to support its CARE service These
contracts commence in the first half of the current financial year

We have now created a nationa! couner network prowiding us with the
platform to win further national contracts

We see sigmficant further opportunities for tis business, now trading under
the UK Mail brand, to benefit from exsting customer relalionships elsewhere
in the Group, particularty in the financial services sector
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Business Review

Business Review
Financial Qverview

“Good profit growth has been turned into strong cash
generation giving us a satisfactory cash balance at the
end of the year "

Financial averview

Good profit growth has been turned into strong cash generation giving us a sahisfactory cash balance at the end of the year Bath revenug and prohit after
tax, were up on the same period last year Cash generation has also begn strong with £21 5m net cash inflow from operating actwibies for the year (2007
£26 2m)

Revenue

Revenue increased by 10 1% to £358 6m (2007 £325 6m)

2008 2007 Ine/{Dec)

£m £m %

Parcels 1798 1938 {7 2%)
Matl 1373 90 3 52 0%
Specialist Services a15 415 _
Tota 3586 T I

Parcels revenues have declined by 7 2% to £179 8m {2007 £193 8m) If the loss of revenue due to the terminalion of the FedEx coniract s excluded,
underlying Parcels revenues are up 2 0%

UX Mail revenue increased by 52 0% to £137 3m (2007 £90 3m), reflecting both further cantract wins, and volume increases from existing customers
Speciahst Services revenues remained static at £41 5m

Profit before taxation

2008 2007 inc/{Dec)

£m Em %

Parcels 154 151 20%
Marl 100 64 56 3%
Speciahst Services 13 20 (35 0%)
Central Costs {122) (114) (7 0%)
Operating profit before exceptional liems 145 121 19 8%
Exceptional admiustrative dems - (N -
Operating profit after exceptional iiems 145 104 39 4%
Nei finance cosls (03) (06) 50 0%
Profil before taxation 142 98 44 0%

Profil before 1ax Increased by 44 9% to £14 2m (2007 £9 8m)
Operating prokt belore exceptional rtems Increased by 19 8% to £14 5m (2007  £12 1m) manly due to the contitued strong profit growth of UK Mail




Exceptional administrative items
Two exceplional admimstrative items have been reported durng the year fesulting m a nil net smpact for the year

£m

Operatians restructure 07 =
FedEx lermnation cosls - release of provision 0n = E
_ Z =

o &

Operations restructure § E
During the year, a number of structurat changes were made to operations, designed to both integrate the different parts of the Group more, and to improve 5 5
the network infrastructure Thes has resuled in 2 number of structural changes in operatronal and sales management, and the establishment of specialist g E

cusiomer care centres The antictpated redundancy costs of £0 7m have been provided for in these financial statements

FedEx lermination costs

Followtng the cessation of the contrach to act as Fedbxs global service pasticipant in the UK from 30 Apni 2007, anhicipated exit costs of £1 3m were prowided
for at 31 March 2007, including one-off redundancy and management restructuring costs, vehicle fivery removal, uniform replacement and legal expenses

A surplus provision of £0 7m has been released, following a number of successiul management inatives te reduce the cost of relivery of the vehicle fleat,
during the year ended 31 March 2008

Net finance costs
Net finance costs payable decreased to £0 3m {2007 £0 6m), the result of both improved cash balances and the continued fecus on cash management

Return on average capital employed

2008 2007

£m £m

Total equity 540 535

Total debt 102 119

Capital employed 642 654

Average capital employed 648 646

Profit after 1ax 97 69
Return on average capital employed 15 0% 107%

The improvement 1n profitability was reflected in the return on average capiial empleyed which tmproved from 10 7% to 15%
Earmngs per share

Basic earnings per sharg increased 40 6% 10 18 Op from 12 8p last year

The average number of shares used in calculating the eamings per share in the year was 54,068,346 compared to 54,150,544 last year

Taxation
The fax charge for 2008 was £4 5m (2007 £2 9m) which reflects an effective rate of 31 7% (2007 29 6%) The increase reflects hgher disallowable expenses

Dividend

The Board proposes a Final Dividend of 10 8p {2007 10 8p). resulting 1n an unchanged tofal dividend for the year of 17 2p (2007 17 2p) The total dividend
for the year 15 covered 1 04 tmes by earnings  The Final Dividend will be paid on 25 July 2008 to shareholders registered on 27 June 2008 with an ex-
dividend date of 25 Jung 2008

Cash flow
2008 2007
£m £m
Cash from operatiens 257 B2
Tax paid 39) (14
Capital expenditure (56) (96)
Net finance costs {03) {06)
Free cash flow 159 166
Dvidends {93) 93)
Other movements {22) 51

Increase in cash 44 124




Business Review
Financial Overview

Financial Overview

Business Review

The Group had a nef cash inflow of £4 4m (2007 £12 4m) i the penod, leading to a net cash posiion at the end of the year of £16 4m (2007 £120m) Cash generated
from operations tofalled £25 7m (2007 £28 2m), ncluding £4 Om of cash released from working capital (2007 £92m} Capitat expenditure for the penod was £5 6m
(2007 £a6m)

A wital component of the ¢ash release fram working capifal 1s the improvement in debtor days  This represents the length of time it iakes for the Geoup to recemve
payments from its debtors

2008 2007
Average debtor days 435 488
Balance sheet

2008 2007

£m £m

Tolal assets 1253 1175
Total habilities (H3) {64 0)
Net assats 540 335
Net cash 62 01
Net assets

Net assets increased by £0 5m Lo £54 Om, as the retained profit together with ¢ash generated trom working capital was used to pay the dividend and buy shares for the ESOT

The Increase In total assets 15 prncipally due to the increased cash batance and increased receivables, the resull of the growth seen in revenues  The mcrease in total
liabiliies 1 largely due to increased trade payables agamn reflecting the growth of the business

Net cash
Al 31 March 2008 the Group hetd net cash of £6 2m (2007 £0 m), resuiting from continued improvernents in workang capiial management and reduced capital expenditure

The Group was ungeared at both 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007

Performance measures

A numnber of performance measures are used to compare the development, undertying business performance and position of the Group and its dwvisions  These are used
collectively, and penodically reviewed 1o ensure they fremain appropnaie and meaningful measuses of the Group's performance

*  (perabing profit

*  {Operating profit margin

«  Retum on average capiial employed

«  Eamings per share {EPS)

= Cash generated from operations

= Deblor days

Each of these performance measures are commented upon within the tables contained in this review
Further perlornance measures refate o the suceess and safety of our people
Indicators of future Group performance closely moniiored by management include
»  New buswess generation

+  Customer relention levels

*  Network capacity utilisation




Treasury risk management

The treasury function of the Group operates within pelicies and procedures approved by the Beard These procedures cover funding, hanking relalionships,
foreign currency, interest rate exposures and cash management

The Group 15 not significantly exposed to the effects of fucluations in exchange rates since alt mcome 15 in slerfing and costs denominated in foreign
currency, principally the euro, represent less than 1% of all expenditure

The Group's strong levels of operating cash flow and low indebtedness mean that it 15 not sigmeficantly exposed to liguidity nsk
The Group's exposure to any signifcant interest risk 1s hedged by means of an interest rate cap

Primary nisks and uncertaintes facing the business
The Group has an established nisk management monitaring and review process described in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 17 to 20

The process requires management of the business to identify, evaluate and momitor nsks and take sieps fo reduce ehminale or manage those nisks
The nsk management plan 1s igviewed by the Board

The pnmary nsks and vncertaintigs facing the business which could have a material adverse impact on the Group are detailed in note 35

Critical accounting policies

The Group accounts are prepared uSing accourting pokicies in accordance with [FRS, as adopted by the European Unian, and IFRIC interpretations which are
effective as at 31 March 2008  The principal accounting policies are set out in note 1 4o these financeal statements

The preparation ef these accounts require the use of estimates, [udgements and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assels, liabilties revenue
and expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and habiibies  Directors” estrmates are based on historical experience, consuliation with experts
and other methods that they beheve are reasonable and appropriate

The crbicat acceunting judgements (n applying these policies are delailed in note 34

Guy Buswell Steven Glew
Chief Executive Finance Cirector

Financial Overview

Business Review
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Directors and Advisers

Peter Kane (61} Chairman

Founded the Company ang, with hus brother Michael Kane,
was responsible for its development ustil becoming a non-
execulive director in 1996 Afier a panod as Chigt Exgcutive
from Avgust 1998 be resumed his non-executive role on
1 April 2001, and was appointed Crairman on 10 Juty 2001

Steven Glew (51) Group Finance Director

Was appointed as Group Finance Director and jowned the
Board on 5 June 2006 He has held sentor financial pesitions
1 Tesco Stores ¢ Ha was also Group Finance Director of
Booker plc, Crown Sports plc and Mothercare plc

Philip Stephens (65)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Was appoinied a non-axecutive director on 1 Apnt 2004 He
15 non-executve Charman of Ogkdene Homes and Egdon
Resoumes and a non-executrve director of Foresight 4 VCT
Unl ks rebrement in 2002 he was imolved 10 comorate
finance and broking lor mose than 35 years

Guy Buswell (46) Chief Executive

Joingd Business Post 1n 1989 and was apoointed Sates
Durector in 1992 Alter a peried elsewhere in the industry
ha reqoined the Company i 1997 and was appointed to the
Board on 12 August 1998 He became Managing Dsrector
of UK Mal en 1 July 2002 and Chief Executve on
5 December 2005

Alec Ross (92) Group Operations Director

Joined the Company e Jung 1997 with 20 years expen-
ence i systems development in transporl and fogistics
and was appormted to the Board as IT Director on 35
September §998 He became Group Serwces Director on
5 December 2005 and Group Operations Direcior on
20 January 2007

Denmis Clark (64)
Non-Executive Director and Sentor
Independent Director

Was the Finance Director of Hunbing frorm 1989 until his
retirement in Apnf 2008 He was appotnted to the Board
on 1 Oclober 1998

Bill Cockburn CBE, TD (65) Deputy Chairman

Was Chiel Executive of The Post Ofiice from 1992 to 1995,
Chigf Executive of WH Smith from 1985 to 1997 and Group
Maraging Direcior of BT tom 1997 to 2001 He was
appunied as a non-executive direclor on 1 Apnl 2002 and
advises on mail matters

Michael Kane (58) Non-Executive Director

Joined Business Posl in 1974, became Managing
Director in 1984, Chied Executive i Novernber 1995 and
nor-executive director 0 March 1997 He acted as Chief
Operating Ofkcer from July 2000 until resuming his non-
executive role on 1 Apnl 2001




Stockbrokers and Financial Advisers
Financial PR
Auditors

Solicrtors

Bankars

Registrars

Registered Office

Dresdner Kleinwort 30 Gresham Street London EC2P 2XY
Hogarth Partnership No 1 London Bridge London SE1 9BG
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP The Atnum 1 Harefield Road Uxbndge UBS 1EX

Travers Smuth LLP 10 Snow Hill London EC1A 2AL
Martineau Johnson LLP Ng t Colmore Square Birmingham B4 6AA

Lioyds TS8 125 Colmore Row Bimingham B3 3SF
Barclays 1 Churchill Place Canary Wharf London E14 5HP

Equinili Aspect House Spencer Road Lancing Business Park Lancing
West Sussex BN99 6DA

Express House 464 Berkshie Avenue Slough SL1 4PL
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Corporate Governance

The Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authonty require Nisted comparies to disclose how they comply with the pnnciples of goad governance and code of best practice known
as the Combined Code The Code was onginally adopted i 1998 and was rewised dunng 2003 and again in 2006  This statement, which incarporates the statement on
corporate social responsiility, explains how the Company has apphied ihe pninciples of good governance set out in the Code

The board

Dunng the year Business Post maintaned a batance of executive and non-executive direclors, bringing a wide range of skills and expenence to the Boad Biographical
detals of the current directors are set out in the Directors and Adwisers statement Of the five non-executive directors, Philip Stephens i judged to be independent according
te the guidelines set out i the Combined Code Denmis Clark had been appointed to the Board as non-gxecutive diregtor on 1 Qctober 1998, and later also appointed as
senior independent direcior Thesefore he has, as from 1 October 2007, served on the Board for more than nine years The Combineg Code states that the Board should
determine whether a director 1s independent in character and judgement and whether there are relationships or circumstances, which are likely {o affect or could appear to
alfect, the director’s judgement, for example serving on a board for more than nine years The Board evaluated Dennis Clark’s character and judgement and found 1t was
consistent throughout and had satisfied themselves that Denms Clark remained independent Dennis Clark has however decided to relire from the Board and wall not put
mmself forward for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting  Michael and Peter Kane are net judged to be mdependent due to their sigmificant shareholdings,
and 8ill Cockburn 1s not judged to be independent due ta his consulancy contract with UK Mail All the non-executive directors make a significant contribution to the
functionng of the Board and its committees, and no one indmdual or group domunates the Board's decisien-making progess

Al dusectors are required by the Company’s Articles of Association to submit themselves for re-election at least every three years The names of those directors standing for
re-election to the Board this year are set out in the Notice of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting There are two non-executive directors and one executive director
slanding for re-election at the AGM and the Board strongly supports their re-election for the reasons set out in the Directors’ Report

The Board's focus 1s on strategy formulation, policy and control These 1s a formal schedule of matters reserved for decision by the Board which retains all major operational
and nsk management decisions with the Board These include the approval of major dems of expenchture or commtment, including acquisitions, major operational projects,
including new contract wins, financing, including lease/buy decisions and the wse of denvatives and insurance, and changes in policy relating to the franchise network. The
Board routinely monitors the vanous financral, operatronat and commergsal nsks facing the Company through reports from management

The Chasrman 1s prmanly responsible for the working of the Board, and the Chief Executive for the sunning of the business and implementation of Board strategy and pelicy
There 15 a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Cheef Executive and this has been agreed by the Board  The Board meats formally at least ming
times a year, with other meelings as necessary The Board receives réparis in advance of each meeting from the Ghief Executive and Finance Director addressing the financial
performance of the Company and developments since the previous meeting, with further reports on paricular 1ssues as appropriate Reports are also supphed to directors
in manths when a Board meeting does not take place All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and there 1s a procedure whereby
directors wishing to do $0 i the furtherance of their duttes, may take independent professional advice at the Company's expense

The Board has a number of committees, the principal ones betng the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination commitiees Membership of shese commuttees and their pnincipal
terms of reference are sef aut in the table below

Business Post Group plc

Board of directars
Audit Committee Remuneration Committee
Denms Clark {Chairman), Philip Stephens {Chaiman),
Peter Kang, Pinlip Stephens Peter Kane, Denmis Clark
Assists the Board i fulfilling its responsibilities Sets remuneration for alt executive directors,
In respect of including share-based ncentives, pensians
. Nomination Commitiee
overseeing the Group's financial statements, and other benefits
Peter Xane (Chaiman),
monitoring the adequacy of internal controls Dennis Clark, Bill Cockburn, Manitors the leve! and structure of
and sk management processes, Philip Stephens remuneration for te first layer of management
the sefection, compensation, independence below Board leve!
and performance of the Group's external Leads the process for, and recommends to the
J—. Board all appoiments {0 the Board Approves inibial grants and subsequent exercise
of all share-tased incentives
the independence and performance of the Reviews succession planneng for the Board
Group's internal auditor
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Peter Kane 15 a member of the Nomination, Remuneration and Audd commuttees, resulting 1n non-comphance with the Combined Code’s prowisions A4 1, B21 and C 31 that
membership of the Remuneration and Audit comimitiees should compnse entirefy independant directors and that the Normination commitiae should compnse a majonty of ndependent
directors However, wath over 30 years of in-depth expenence of the business, and as a sigmificant shareholder, the Board hefieves that hrs membershup of these commitiees 15 appropriate
and that he bngs an invaluable knowledge and expenence to therr operation

The fgllowing table shows the attendance of directors at regular Board meetings and at meefings of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominatton committees dunng the year

Board Audit Remunerztion Nominatien
Number held 9 3 3 1
Guy Buswel! 9 3 3"
Denmis Clark 8 3 3 1
Bill Cockbura 9 3 3 1
Steven Glew 8 3
Michag! Kang 8
Peter Kane 9 3 3 1
Alec Ross 9
Philip Stephens 9 3 ~ 3 1

™ Attendance by directars who are not members of the committee was at the request of the Chairman of the committee

The Nomination committee met once dunng the year to consider the appointment of a non-executive director to replace Denmis Clark, and have agreed the pnincipal jab

descnphon as well as the appointment of independent recruitment consultants

During the year, the directors have again reviewed the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and ils committees  The mdwdual directors initially compleled separate
questonnares, and the results were compiled and analysed by the Company Secretary, who prepared 2 summary report for the Board The areas covered included Board

and commuittee compasibion, dynamics and accauntability, preparation for and performance at meetings, and induction and prefessionat development

[ addibion to regular Board meetings, the Chairman regularly convenes meetings of the non-executive directors Lo assess the performance of the Board 1n the absence of
the executive directers The performance of the Charman was considered as part of the questionnaires completed by the directors and discussed separately by the non-

executive directors withaut the Chairman present The Board and its committees are satisfied that they are operating effectively

Directors’ remuneration

The Beard considers thal the Company complies with the main prin¢iples of the Combined Code #n relation to remuneration, by having a formal and transparent
procedure for devetoping policy on executive remuneration and for fixang the remuneration packages of directors No director 15 involved 1n deciding his awn
remuneration A segnificant proportion of remuneration 1s structured so as to link rewards to carporate and ndivitual performance The Board believes that levels of
remuneration are sufficent 1o atiract, retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully, but without paying more than is necessary

Details of diregtors” remuneration are set out  the Remuneration Report

Relations with shareholders

Whilst there 15 a substanhal shareholding represented on he Board, the Company values 1ts dialogue with both ingtitutional and private investors Two-way communication
with mshiutional investors, analysts and private investors 1s actively pursued and a series of presentations and meetings are held throughout the year, carefully recognising
statutory constrainis concerring ifie disclosure of information Feedback from these meetings 1s collated by the Company's adwisers and circutated to members of the Board
to ensure thai they are kept informed concerning the wiews of shareholders in addition, the Chairman penodically attends mestings with shareholders, and non-gxeculive
directors are inwited to attend results presentations
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This year's Annual General Meeting wilt be held on 9 July 2008 at which time the Chairmen of the Audit, Remunerabion and Nomination commitiees will be available to
answer shareholder questions The Company will continue its practice of proposing individual resclutions, including separale resclutions relating to the Directors’ Report
and Accounts and (he Remuneration Report, and of reporting the proxy voling 1n respect of each resolution

Accountability and directors’ responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report, the directors’ remuneration report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the dwectors 1o prepare financial statements for each financial year In accordance with company law the direciors have prepared the Group and parent
company financial statements 1n accordance with International Financiat Reporting Siandards ({FRSs} as adopted by the European Union  The finzncial staiements are
Tequired by law to give a true and faw wew of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit or loss of the Geoup for that peried

In preparing those financal statements the directors are required to

= Select suitable accounting polictes 2ng then apply them consistently

»  Make judgments and estimates (hat are reasonable and prudent

*  Stale thal the financial statements comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union

+  Prepare the financsal statements on the going concern basis, unless i 1s nappropriate 1o presume that the Group will continue in business, In which case there
should be supparting assumptions or quanfications as necessary

The directors confirm that they have complied with the abave requirements in preparing the financial statements

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy al any time the hinancra! position of the Company and the Group
and to enable them o ensure that the financial stalements and the directors’ remuneration repart comply with the Comparies Act 1985 and, as regards the Group financial
statemnentis, articts 4 of he IAS Regulation They are also respansible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasenable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other imregulanbes

The direclors are responsible for the maintenance and nfegnty of the Group web site, www businesspost biz Legislation n the UK governing the preparation and
dissemunation of inancial statements rmay differ from legislation in other junsdections

Internal controls

The Board of directors has overall responsibility for ensuring that the Group maintains a system of internal control to provide 1t with reasonable assurance regarding effective
and efficient operations, intemal financial control and comphance with laws and regutations There are inherent imitations in any system of intemal contral and, accordingly,
even the most effective system ¢an provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance

The Tumbull report 1ssued by the institute of Charered Accouniants in England and Wales in 1989 prowded further guidance as to how the Cormbined Code principles on
internal conbrol should be applied in prachice

The Board considers that the Company has complied with the Turnbull repart ihroughout the year There is a formal ongasng process for identifying, managing and reviewing
any changes n the nsks faced by the Company This process operates under the direction of, and 1s regularly reviewed by, the Board who 15 sahishied with the level of
effectiveness of the intemal control system

Repont & Azcounts
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The key features of the intemal control system within the Group are

clearty delined delegation of responsibildies, including retevant authenisation levels,

clearly documented intemnal procedures set oulin operational and administration manuals,

regular compliance audit wisis to all owned and franchised locations which monctor comphiance with procedures and assess the integnity of inancial information,
review of financeal procedures by the internal auditor,

close involvemeni of executive directors in monitoning and managing the mam nisk areas of the business,

regular information provided to semor management, covering financial performance and key business ingicators, and

monthly monitonng of results against budget and forecast, with major variances being followed up and management aclion taken where necessary

Details of the Group's activities in relation to 1ts erwaronmental, employment and health and safety responsibilities are set out in the Corporate Social Responsimiily statement

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal coniral syslems during the penad covered by the accounts and up {o the date of the approval of the accounts
This rewiew covered all controls, including émancial, eperational and comphance contrals and nisk management

Audit committee and auditors
The membership and principal terms of reference of the Audit commuttee are set out above The Committee 15 chaired by Dennis Clark who, as a qualified accauntant
and unbl Apnl 2008 the Finance Direclor of Hunting ple, 1s censidered to have recent and relevant financial expenence

Dunng the year, the Commuttee met three kmes 1o discharge its responsibuities These responsibibies included

manitering the integnty of the half year and annual financial statements, by considenng reparts from the Finance Diregter and the exdernal auditors setting out the
basis of preparation of the results and the principal reporting judgements therean,

reviewing the Company’s interna! controls, by considening reports from bath the mternal and extemal auditors duning the year and an annual report on the effectiveness
of mternal controls from the Chief Executive and Finance Director,

monitoring the scope and eflectiveness of the intemal auditor, by considering work plans, reports throughowt the year and attendance at Audil commitieg meetings,

moniforiag the independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the extemal auditors, by considenng the quality of peaple and serice the robusiness of the audit and
the qualy of delivery, and approving their terms of engagement and reruneration,

reviewing the Company's policy for the engagemeni of the external auditors to supply non-audit senvices, and

monitoring the Company's whistle blowing procedures

Compliance with the combined code
Save for the compoesition of its commitiees, where the Code requires a greater proportion of members to be non-executive directors judged lo be mdependent, or as
otherwise described in this repon, the Board considers that the Company has cornplied with the provisigns of Section 1 of the Combined Code 2006
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Corporate social responsibility

The Boamd recognises s environmental and employment responsiiliies and
continues to devote significant resources towards mproving standards

Environmental

The Group recognises that it has a responsibility to reduce its impact on the
enaranment Responsibility for communicating the Group's environmental policy and
monitonng comphiance rests with the Group Operabions Director aided by the Group
Fleet Engineer, Head of HR and national Health and Safety Manager

Business Post s aculely aware of the impact that transport operations have on the
envimnment and the Company 1s committed io reducing this impagt The key objechve
15 to establish a balance between cost effective solutions and changes which result n
tangible benefits Business Post 15 very keen 1 miroduce iniatves aimed at reducing
the effect on the environment One of the mitiatives Business Post has taken on board
15 the tnalling of a fully electnic vehicle (Modec), for delivenes in the London area The
elecing vehicle is emissions free and n the event of the tral being successful will be
the first such vehicle to be used in the Busmess Post operation

The slopang front deuble decker trailer, designed in conjunchion with the Group’s trailer
suppher, Don-Bur Bodies and Trailers, has dramatically reduced the fuel consumption
of the towing vehicle, thus reducing CO: emissions by up to 25 tonnes per vehicle per
year The design 15 easily applied to existing fleet trarlers as nearly all components from
the onginal design are re-used With 69 of these trailers currently in the fles, the sawng
in fuel and GOz 15 sigrificant Based on cument route mileages the reduction in CO:
emissions 1S arourtd 1,699 tonnes per annum  The work on this design has already
resulted in two awards, from Green Fleet and EAST

All powered vehicles have bespoke aerodynamic arr kts, designed by Eco-Tek, which
have resulted in mpg improvements of between 5%-10% These vehicles are on a six
year teplacemant cycle with manufacturers that boast a 95% recyciable component
They are also mantamed by manufactuer main dealers to ensure only quality
components and o1ls are used for peak performance Vehicles and trailers are specified
to run on road-fendly air suspension, reducing wear of components damage to the
road network and noisg poltution Al trarlers incorporate LED hghting as opposed to
bulbs which removes 2 waste disposal problem Wherever possible, vehicle and traller
bodies m build are pant free using self coloured panels and natural alurminum
framework. All heavy goods vehicles are now spectfied with automated transmissions,
which optimise fuel economy and also reduces dnver fatigue

Tyres are also audited on a regular basis to ensure repair agents maintain tyre pressures,
which if not carrect, can have a detnmental effect not only an the Iife of the tyre but also
the vehicle's fuel consumption, which in turn has an effect on the C0:» emissions of
thet vehicle The use of mute planning software also enables the Company to reduce
fuel usage by optimising journey miles and has resulted 1n a reduction of CO:
emissions of 176 tonnes for the year Business Post has alse adopted a new company
car policy wherehy all company cars will have a C0: emissions range of below
165gkm

The Company has also recently appointed a Fugl and Energy Manager to review and
monior fuel and energy consumphion throughout the Group as well as implement
relevant reduction inriatves One of the areas the Fuel and Energy Manager will focus
on 15 the monitanng of mpg to ensure vehicles eman fuel efficient A new driver
training package has also been developed 10 assis! drivers in dving vehicles in a fuel
efficient manner as well as enhance Health and Safety standards A further initiative that

has been nvestigated this year 15 the review and where practicable the replacement of
diesel fork hit trucks with electric fork lift trucks The Company has also apposnted the
Carbon Trust {0 complete an energy survey and the Fuel and Energy Manager wil be
warking closely with the Carbon Trust in implementing the relevant inibiatives and
manitoring and reviewing each site's energy consumption

Waste management has recewed renewed focus and recyching bins have been
installed at all srtes and a target has been set 1o reduce our landfill over the next year
Employees are also encouraged to recycle effice waste which has resulted in an
increase of paper being recycled Further recyching imbiatives will be implemented in
office areas In the forthcoming year, which wali include designated bins for recycling
of plastic and aluminum All photocopier paper used throughout the Group compnses
80% recycled paper

Business Post aspires to achieving 1SQ 14001 accreditabion for all ts siles and has
commenced the procass to achieve ths

Health and safety

The Group fully embraces and endarses the legal and moral obligation to protect the
health, safety and welfare of employees and cthers who may be affected by owr
operalions Robust palicies have been developed and deployed to ensure training, nsk
assessment, safe systems of wosk and accident investigation procedures are camed
out throughout the network Policies are also updated on an ongoing basis {o ensure
they reflect the changing envionment in which we operate, an example of this being
the Company Drving Policy  Healih and Safety 1s discussed at Group Board meetings
utilising the monthly Health and Salaty report, which outhines proactve and reactive
measures for discussion and debate A full Health and Safety, and Environment audt
15 camed out each year at all operating locations A Health and Safety intranet site
contans readily avaiiable information for managers on specific procedures and
policies such as emergency response, safe systems, nisk assessments, accident
investigat:ons, imited quantites of dangerous goods allowed and commumications to
promote health and safety and 10 prevent accidents from occurmng n the work place
Employment

The Group has continued to make sigmificant progress in Human Resource
management over the last year in its aim fo become an ‘Employer of Choice” The
Employee Consultative Group has been strengthened to provide a robust platform for
all employees to make a significant contnbution to bonging about change In the
workplace and fo prowide a forum for the exchenge of formation, opimions and
feedback Re-elections tock place in Apnl 2007 increasing the aumber of site-based
representatives 40 almest 100, with eight regionat and one national representative A
new Chairperson was elected by employee representatives in October 2007 znd will
stay in tesm for a penod of three years  An employee sunvey has been conducted and
a further suvey will be camed out in 2008 The susvey results conbinue to provide
invaluable feedback on i1ssues affecting our employees Our reward schemes have also
been reviewed resuling i improved incentives and compettive benefits and the
intraduction of a performance based bonus scheme A number of voluntary benefits
have also been intreduced resulting n a wider choice for employees Employee
turnoves has continued 1o fall, having now reduced every year for the last five years
Resource has been invested in the HA Department, and the HR Shared Seraces Centre
has been developed to support all remuneration ard benefits achmbes across the
Group The Graup continues to coach and train managess in a wide vanely of skill areas
ncluding Dispute Besolution, Performance Management, Accident fnvestigation
Supenisory Skills and the introduchion of a new Corporate Induction Programme called
‘Best Welcome'
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The Group has recruded a dedicated Leaming and Development Manager and the
function has been restructured to increase I1s wisiity as well as further supporting the
needs of the business This was recently recogrised through the successiul re-
accrediation of Investors n People in January 2008 as well as winning the National
Training Award The Group has adopted both the HCl and Childcare Voucher Schemes
NVQ Training has also been implemented resuttng 10 a number of employeas gaining
a natonally recognised qualificaiion To support our staff welfare programme, the
Group provides, through a third party, @ 24 hour confidential help ine that prowdes
counseliing and advice on a wide range of subjects The Group continues to ensure
that all the requrements of curent and future employment and Heajth and Safaty
legislaton are met and managers are kept up te date with changes in legislalion
through quarterly seminars

Business Post has also signed up 1o Global Compact, a United Nations intbative, based
on ten principles refated to conditions of labour, protection of basic human nghts,
husiness ethics and the protection of the environment. As a business we are totally
committed to supporting the principles of Global Compact and proud 1o be associated
with 1tand what it represents
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Chantable support

Cancer Research UK 15 the chosen chanty pariner for Business Post Group, its
employees and its franchisees The Group donates one penny to Cancer Research UK
for every parcel consignment camed for customers who pay ther accounts by direct
debit and, in the last year, thvs rarsed £62,730

Business Post staff across the whole company also rose to the chatlenge dunng the
last year and raised over £24,450 for Cancer Research UK with a wide vaniety of evants,
including sponsored walks, raffles, charity auck:ons, cycle ndes and parachuting




Remuneration Report

This part of the Remuneration Report is unaudited

The members of the Remuneration Committee (“the Commuttee™) duning the year were Phulip Stephens (Chawman), Dennis Clark and Peter Kane At the request of the
Commsiiee, the Group's Chaef Executive, Guy Buswell, and Deputy Chaman, Bill Cockburn, gave adwce and assistance to the Comimittes other than in respett of therr

own remuneration
In addition, the Remuneration Committee sought adwice from external remuneration consultants, Hewitt New Bridge Street Consultants LLP

The constitution and operation of the Commitiee dunng the year has complied with the Combined Code's guidance on directors remuneration except thal the
Company's non-executive Chairman 15 not considered to be independent  His expenience within bolh the Company and the industry for over 30 years 15 howaver,
considered to be nvaluable to the Committee

Remuneration palicy
The remuneration palicy of the Group, n particular the policy for seiting remuneration for executive directors and other senior executives, 1s determined by the

Commuittee of the Board The terms of reference of the Commuttee are avaitable on the Group's website
The remuneration policy for non-executive directors incleding the Chairman is determined by the Board

The Commitiee’s remunerabion policy 1 to provide competitive remuneration arrangements for executive direclors and senior executives which are commensurate
with those of other companies of a simslar nature, size and standing and which reflect the Group’s business and financial objectives and which are consistent with the
goals of Corporate Governance Remuneration arrangements are addressed wittun the cantext of the Group's current performance, s progress towards strategic
objectives and indwduzl executives’ personal performance

Elements of the remuneration package of executive direclors

Remuneration of executive directors comprises the following elements

Base safaries
Base salanes arg rewiewed annually I considering approprate salary levels the Commuttee takes (nto account the remuneration paid by comparable companies in
terms of market capitahsatien, revenues and profits  The Company's practice 15 {0 larget base salaries at the mid-market Jevel in the appropniate market for the

exgcutive posiion  In determining executive salaries censideration 1s also given to their expenence and general performance level

Annual bonuses

The Group operates an annual cash benus scheme for executive directors The fevel of bonus payment 1s dependent upon the Group's performance evalualed against
Group budgeted pie-tax profit, set out at the beginning of the year The maxmum payment has been increased to 100% of annual salary in the year, previously the
maximum was 50% of salary The Committee wishes to ieentivse and reward significant oui-performance of budgeted performance and accordingly the increased
maamum bonus reflects substantially higher targets having been set for the achievement of this bonus level  The bonus payments for the year reftect the partial

achievement of the targets set for the year

Benehis

Health and sickness insurance schemes are provided for executive directors and include private health cover, permanent health insurance and death in senice benefits
Executive direciors recerve either a car, or an annual car allowance and contnbubions of between 12 5% and 15% of each indmdual duector’s base salary mnto a defined
contnbution pension scheme

Share-based mcentive schemes

On an on-geing basis, the Group currently ulihses a Long Term Incentive Plan and a Share Matching Plan 1o provide longer term share-based incentives for execulive
direclors  The schemes are designed to motivale and reward achievement of 2 combinateon of challenging corporate linancial targets and enhancement of shareholder
valug  Specific details of the schemes are outhined on the fallowing page In additian, one-off awards were granted m 2006 (following shargholder approval at the
AGM) to the Chief Executive and Finance Director — full details of these awards are outlined later i tis report
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Long term mcentive plan
The Group’s Long Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP") 1s a key link between executives’ remunerabion and the fong-term success and performance of the Group The
maximum polential annual award of shares to an executive 15 100% of salary (with the additional flexibility to grant awards worth up to 150% of salary in exceptional

circurnstances, such as on recruitment or in acute retention scenarios)
The performance conditions for LTIP awards to be granted in 2008/09 are as follows

*  40% of the awards will be determined by EPS growth over a three year performance peniod  25% will vest for growth of 15% pa over the three-year penod
(2008-2011), with full vesting for growth of 20% p a over the thiee-year penod

*  60% of the awards will be determined by Total Shareholder Return ("TSR") performance relative to FTSE All-Share companies {excluding Investment Trusts),

with 25% of awards vesting for median perfarmance over the three-year performance penod nsing to 100% of awards vesting for upper quartile performance

The Commiliee beheves that this balance of perfermance conditions successfully aligns the interests of directors with shareholders whilst also rewarding the

achievernent of challenging growth targets relating to the underlying financial performance of the Company

Share malctng plan
Selected executives may be invited 10 invest a portien of their cash bonus n the acquisition of Company shares worth p to 25% of their pre-tax salary  Where such

an mvestment 1s made, the executives will receive, under the Share Matching Plan, a matching award of shares ¢f equivalent value

One-third of the award will vest 1If EPS growth 1s at least RPI+ 4% pa over a single three-year performance penod, increasing to full vesting for EPS growth of at
least RPI+ 6% p a

Other schemes
The Company can make grants of share options under an existing Executive Share Option Scheme although executive directors have not receved option grants since
2003 and it 1s currently intended that they would only recemve future option grants in exceptional circumstances  Executive directors are eligible to participate in the

Group’s Sharesave scheme on the same terms as other employees

Shareholding guidelmes
On the exercise of awards under any of the Company's leng-term incentive schemes, executive directors are expected 1o retain at least half of the aftes-tax profit in

the form of shares untit they have a shasehelding at least equal to their base salanes

Composition of remuneration package
The targeted composition of each executive direclor’s remuneration between ficed and variable remuneration 1§ approximately 50% dersved from salary and benefits

and 50% from vanable mcentives

The remuneration of each non-gxecutive director 15 100% non-performance related except thal, in addition to his director's and consultancy fees, Bill Cockburn has
a long-term (ncentive arrangement whereby he 15 enbitled 1o receve bonuses if the profit of UK Mail exceeded specified targets within a four year peniod of the
commencement of trading, which was on 10 May 2004
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Directors’ service contracls

It is the Company’s policy that whilst there shoutd not be a fixed duration in respect of directors” service confracts each contract contains notice penods of not mare

than one year and contans a ciause whereby the contractual tenmination payments do noi exceed the direcior’s remuneration for the previous calendar year

Executve Direclor Contract date Unexpired lerm from

31 March 2008
Guy Buswetl 310306 12 months
Steven Glew 05 06 06 12 months
Alec Ross 241007 6 months

Contractual termination
payment”

12 monihs remuneration
12 months remuneration
6 maonths remuneration

* In the event of termination foltowing a change of contro!, executive directors are entitled to termination payments of 12 months remuneratien

Non-Executive directors

Non-executive directors are imitially appointed for a three year term  All directors are required by the Company's Articles of Assoctation fo subrmit themselves for

re-election at least every three years

Non-Executive Director Confract date Unexpired ferm from

31 March 2008
Dennis Clark 011007 4 months
Bill Gockburn 310307 24 months
Michael Kare 011001 indefinite
Peter Kane gi1om ndefinite
Philip Stephens 310307 12 manths
Performance graph

The graph shown below compares the total shareholder retern for an investment i the shares of Business Post with the return or the same invesiment in the FTSE
All-Share andex (excluding Investment Trusts) aver a five year period commencing an 1 Aprif 2003 In the opinien of the Committee, the FTSE All-Share index

{excluding investment trusts), 15 currently the most appropnate index agamst which the total shareholder retum of Business Post should be measurad
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Directors’ emoluments

Emoluments receved by each director dunng the year were as follows

2008 2007

Salary 2008 2007 Pension Pension

& Fees Benefiis Bonus Total Total Cont's Cont’s

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Guy Buswell 310 13 16 339 344 46 41
Dennis Clark 30 - - 30 30 - -
Bill Cockburn* 58 - - 58 100 - -
Steven Glew 220 14 1 245 199 27 25
Michael Kang™" 26 2 - 28 31 - -
Peter Kane 68 i - 69 67 - -
Alec Ross 180 12 9 20 217 23 21
Phillip Stephens 30 - - 30 30 - -

Benehts campnse company car benefits, health insurance and death in service benefits

* included n Bili Cockburn’s remuneration are fees of £44,000 as a non-executive director and payments of £14,202 1n respect of consultancy provided to the Group
The Company has a separate leng term inceniive agreement with Bill Cockburn in relatien to his consultancy services  Under this, Mr Cockburn will be entitled to
ieceive bonuses of the profit of UK Mail exceeds specified targets within a four year pened of the commencement of frading  As detailed in note 24, Mr Cockburn 15
entitled to the maximum 100% payout of £400,000, £209,256 of which has been accrued this financial year

** Included in Michae! Kane's remunerabion are fees of £25,500 as a non-executive director and payments of £608 in respect of consultancy on operational matiers
Michael Kane's remuneration was paxd to his company, Beaufield Entertainment Ltd, for the provision of his services as a director

Diectors’ Execubve Share Oplions

Date of Earliest Expiry Exercise Number at Exercised Lapsed Number at

Grant Exercise Daie Price 1 Apni 1N yeas 0 year 31 March
Date 2007 2008

Alec Ross

310502 310505 310512 418p 24,521 - - 24,521

N¢ options were exercised duning the year

No other directors have been granted share ophions in the shares of the Company or other Group entities None of the terms and conditions of the share oplwons were
varted during the year

The exercise of aptions 1 subject Lo the condilion that the growth i the Company's eamings per share shall exceed the mcrease in the index of refail prices from the
dale of grant by more than 3% p a
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Remuneration Report

This part of the Rernuneration Report 1s audited

Sharesave scheme

Date of Earliest

Grant Exercise
Oate

Guy Buswell

290604 010807

Steven Glew

230806 010909

Alec Ross

270605 010808

Expiry
Date

010208

010310

010209

Exercise
Price

308p

360p

436p

Number at
1 April
2007

2,368

2,597

1,910

Granted
n year

Exercised Lapsed
n year in year

- 2 368

The Sharesave scheme piovides a savings plan to purchase shaves and has no performance criena in erder to participate

The market price of the Company's shares at the end of the financial year was 285p and the range of prices durmg the year was between 231p and 514p

Interests in shares

The mterests of the directors in the ordinary shares of the Company were as follows

Guy Buswel}
Dennis Clark
Bill Cockburn
Steven Glew
Michael Kane
Peter Kane
Alec Ross
Philip Siephens

31 March 2008
Ordinary Shares

of 10p

83,196

3,500
17,004
32,929

7,010,019
6,672,967

27,111
15,000

1 Apnl 2007
QOrdinary Shares
of 10p

1997
3,500
12,004
15,000
7.010.019
18,233,801
14714
10,000

Number a
31 March
2008

2,597

1,910

All directors' interests are beneficially held save for 3,333,334 ordinary shares which are held by beneficianes who are persons cannected with Peter Kane There has

been no change in the interasts set out above between 31 March and 20 May 2008

In March 2008 Peter Kane {ransferred his personal holding in the Company, which amounted to 11,560,834 ordinary shares (21 2%) {o hus sen John Kane

This iranster was the result of a re-organisation of holdings within the Kane family This transfer does not change the long erm struclure of the Kane famuly

shareholding

The toial holding i the Company of the Kane family remains unchanged at 58 4%
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Remuneration Report

This part of the Remuneralion Report 1s audited

Long term mcentive plan
Directors’ interests in shares held in the Long Term Incentve Plan are as follows

Date of Award Performance Number at Granted Exercised Lapsed Number at
Award Price Penod 1 Apnl in year 1N year In year 3 March
Ending 2007 2008
Guy Buswell
161104 545p 310307 16,063 - - 16,063 -
240505 575p 310308 16,847 - - - 16,847
170706 437p 310309 62,929 - - - 62,929
0406 07 453p 310310 - 66,955 - - 66,955
95,839 66,955 - 16,063 146,731
Steven Glew
17 07 06 437p 310309 44,622 - - - 44 622
0406 07 463p 310310 - 47,516 - - 47,516
44,622 47 516 - - 92,138
Alec Ross
161104 545p 310307 10,372 - - 10372 -
240505 575p 310308 11,130 - - - 11,130
17 07 06 437p 310309 48,913 - - - 48913
04 06 07 463p 310310 - 38,877 - - 8877
70415 38,877 - 10,372 98,920

Awards granted may be exercised between three and ten years following the date of gran

Vesting of awards granted in 2004 and 2005 »s determined pnimanly by reference over a peniod of thvee financial years te the Company’s Total Shareholder Retumn
("TSR*) measured against the TSR of a1l the other companies in the FTSE AN-Share Support Services sector 10% of shares may be exercised if the Company achieves
median ranking, rising pro-rata to 100% if the Company's ranking falls within the top 10%  The exercise of awards 1s atso subject to the condibion that the growth in
the Company's earnings per share shall exceed the increase in the index of retail pnces from the date of grant by more than 3% p a

Mo shares vested undes the 2004 award, fallowing failure of the EPS condition for the year ended 31 March 2007

Awards granted i 2006 and 2007 are subject to two distinct performance condiions  40% of the awards will be delermined by EPS growth over a performance period
of three financial years 25% wilt vest for growth of 15% p a with full vesting for growth of 20% p a The other 60% of the awards will be determined by TSR performance
relative to FTSE All-Share companies {exctuding investiment Trusts) with 25% of awards vesting for median performance over the performance penod of three financial
years nising to 100% of awards vesting for upper quartile perlormance

The average price of the Company's shares on the five dealing days pnor t¢ 4 June 2007, used to determine the number of shares granted, was 463p

The Company's Employee Share Ownership Trust holds shares in the Company for subsequent transfer to employees under the Long Term Incentive Plan  Shares held
by the Trust are not voted at shareholder meetings and do not accrue dvdends At 31 Maich 2008, the Trust he!d a total of 624,817 shares in respeci of s future
obligatiens under the Company’s Long Term Incentive Plan
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Remuneration Report

Tiis part of the Remuneration Report is audited

Share matching plan
Detavls of shares purchased and matching grants awarded during the year are as follows

Date of Earliest Number a Granted Exercised {apsed Number at
Grant Exescise Date 1 Apnl tn year In year In year 31 March
2007 2008
Guy Buswell
161104 1611 07 870 - - 870 -
151106 1511008 2000 - - - 2000
0406 07 0406 10 - 34,325 - - 34,325
2,870 34,325 - 870 36,325
Steven Glew
040610 040610 - 7.929 - - 7929
Alec Ross
1611 04 1611 07 B70 - - 870 -
0406 07 040610 - 5,663 - - 5663
870 5,663 - 870 5,663

Cre-third of these awards will vest If EPS growth 1s at least RPi+ 4% pa over a sing'e three-year pertormance peniod, increasing to full vesting tor EPS growih of at
Jeast RPI+ 6% pa

Awards may be exercised between 36 months and 42 months foflowing the date of grant

One-off long lerm meentive award
Directors' interest 1n shares held 1n the one-off long term mcentive award are as follows

Date of Award  Performance Numnber at Granted Exercised Lapsed Number at

Award Price Penod 1 Apm! in year In year n year 31 March
Ending 2007 2008

Guy Buswell

1707 06 450p 310309 170,000 - - - 170,000

Steven Glew

170706 450p 310309 50,000 - - - 50,000

The extent to wiich these one-otf awards (approved by shareholders at the 2006 AGM) vest wili be determined by the Company’s EPS in 2000 relative to the budgeted
EPS fos 2007 The awards will only begin to vest for growth of 15% pa between these two figures wath 100% vesting for growth of 20% pa Although the performance
penod for these gwards 5 thiee years from grant, the targets are expressed as growth from the budget fhigure for 2007 i order to ensure that the targets are more
challenging than those under the LIl Asa reslt, the EPS value required i 2009 for these one-off awards to begin to vest 1s hugher than the EPS value required in that
yeat for the maxamum LTIP award to vest

The 2007 budget figure to be used as the base higure for these awards was adjusted downwards by the Committee o take account ot the loss of the FedEx contract The
Committee felt this adjustment was necessary because this coniract oss was outside of managemeni control, and thal the adjustment was acceplable because the EPS
targets required in 2009 far vesting under ths scheme still remain more demanding than those for the normal LTIP scheme

Philip Stephens
On behali of the Board
20 May 2Q08




Directors’ Report

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2008

Principal actmity and business review

Business Post Group plc s a public imited company incorporated and domciled in
England and the holding company of UK Mail Ltd Business Post Ltd, BXT Limifed
and UK Paltets Ltd 1t 15 quoted on the London Stock Exchange (LSE BPG) The
Group's pringipal actvity 15 the provision of express collestion and delivery services
for parcels, mail and palletsed goods The informahion that fulfils the requirements
of the Business Review can be found i the Chaiman's Statement, Chief Executive's
Review, Financial Review and Corporate Social Responsibility statement, which are
ncorparated n this report by reference

Results and dividend

The profit for the financial year of £37 million 15 reported in the Consolidated
Income Statement A fina! dwidend of 10 8p per share in respect of the year ended
31 March 2007 was paid on 27 July 2007 An inchanged intenm diwdend of 6 4p
per sharg in respect of the year ended 31 March 2008 was pard on 16 January 2008
and the duectors recommend a final dmdend of 10 8p per share, payable on 25
July 2008 to shargholders on the register on 27 June 2008

Corporate governance

A statement on corporate governance and the Group's compliance with the
Combined Code 15 set out in the Corporate Governance statement

Donations

During the year, the Group made chaniable donations of £62,730 to Cancer
Research UK {2007 £68,178) The Group made no polibcal donations

Directors

Details of the cumment directors are shewn in the Directors and Adwisers statement
together with therr biographical details and dates of appomiment

In accordance with the Arlicles of Assocration, Michael Kane, Bill Cockbum and
Steven Glew retire by rotation at the Annual General Meetng and, being ehg:ble,
offer themselves for re-electien Details of therr ferms of appointment can be found
in the Remuneralion Report The Board strengly supports therr re-lection and
recornmends {hat shareholders vote in favour Michael Kane and Bill Cockbum are
both non-executive directors Bill Cockburn, having been on Boards of large
orgamsations including The Post Office, WH Smith and BT, and a non-executive
durector of a number of other companies, brings substantial expenence of coporae
and staff management which 1s of considerable assistance to the Company In hus
iole as Deputy Charman, he provides adwice, counsel and support fo the Chief
Executive, and his knowledge of Royal Mail and operating in a regulated environment
at BT has proved of considerable benefit in the development of UK Mail

Michael Kane joined his brother Peter Kane, who founded the company, 1n 1974
and, for over 20 years, assisted n s day io day runming, incluging as Managing
Dareclor and Chief Executve His detailed understanding of the business provides
valuablg insight duning Board discussions and enables a detailed assessment of the
Company performance
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The Charman has undertaken an evaluatton of the non-gxecutive directors
submitting themselves for re-election and confiuns that thewr performance
continues to be efiective and that they commut sufficient fime to the fulfilment of
their dutees as directors and committee members, as appropniate

Directors’ indemnities

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, directors are granted an
indemruty from the Company to the extent permutted by taw tn respect of liabilites
icurred as a result of thewr office The Company maintains insurance against
certain habiliies which could anse from a negligent act or a breach of duty by 1ts
directors and officers in the discharge of ther duties

Employment policy

The Group's policy 15 to maintain, as far as practicable, c¢lose consultations with
employees on matters hkely to affect their interests and, 10 this end, established an
Employee Cansultative Group in April 2003 The Group 18 an equal oppartunities
employer and holds an Investors in People certificate

The Group's pelicy and practice 1s to encourage the recrutment and subsequent
training, career development and promotion of disabled persons according to thenr
aphiudes and abilties and the retention and refraining of employees who also
become disabled during thew employment

Further information concerning the Group's human rescurce management activities
15 sét out 1n the Comporate Social Respansibiby staterent

Environmental responsihility and health and safety

A statement on the sleps taken to operale the business in purswuit of good
emargnmental and health standards 15 set out in the Corporate Social Responsibility
slaternent

Directors’ interesis

The interests of the directors and their families as appearing in the register maintained
under the prowisions of the FSA's Disclosure and Transparency Rules in the share
capital of the Compary on 31 March 2008 are set out in the Rernuneration Report
Share capital

Detals of the movement in authonsed and issued share capatal of the Company
dunng the financial year to 31 March 2008 can be found in note 23

Substantial sharehalders

In addition to the mierests of Peter Kane (12 2%) and Michael Kane (12 8%), as at

20 May 2008 the Company had been notified of the following notifiable nterests in
its 1ssued share capital

No af shares
Mr John Kane 15,014,167 {27 5%)
M & G Investment Management 4891,222 {8 9%)
Ms Joanna Bailey 3,333,333 {61%)
Schroders plc 2,474 915 {4 5%)
FMR/Fidelity International Limited 2,017,351 (37%)

MrJohn Kane and Ms Joanna Bailey are the adult cheldren of Peter Kane




Directors’ Report

Takeover directive

The Company has considered the disclosume requirements under the Takeover
Directive ang beheves relevant details ¢an be found as follows

= The structure of the Company’s capital {see note 23}

« In respect of persons with significant direct or indirect holdings of
secunties 1n the Company, the identity of the person and the nature of the
nights {see the Remuneration and Directors’ reports)

« Detals of any rules that the Company has about appointment and
replacement of directors and details of any rules about the amendment of
the Company's arhcles of association (see Corporale Governance section,
Directors' Report and Articles of Assaciation, which 1s made available for
inspection as set out in the Notice)

*  Details of the powers of the Company's dirgctars, including, in particular
any powers in relation to the 1ssuing er buying back by the Company of ats
shares (see Directors’ Report and Articles of Association, which 1s made
available for inspection as set out in the Notice)

» Details of any agreements between the Company and its diectors or
employees prowding for cempensation for loss of office or employment
(through resignation, purported redundancy or otherwise) that occurs
because of a takeover bid (see Remuneration Report)

Supplier payment palicy

The Group's policy concermng the payment of it trade payables 1s to follow the

Beiter Payment Practice Code which can be found at httg /Awww payontime co uk

The Group endeavaurs Lo agree standard terms of payment with its major suppliers

at the commencement of business Suppliers fulfilling the condrtions of supply are

paid in accordance with the agreed standard terms Other suppliers are paid 1n
accordance with contractual terms as agreed from time {0 tme  As at 31 March

2008, the Group had an average of 32 4 days (2007 284 days) purchases

outstanding in trade creditors

Geing concern

The Directors are satsfied that the Group has adequate resources to continue In

busmess for the foreseeable future and consequently a gomng concem basis

continues 1o be appropriale in prepanng the accounts

Auditors and disclosure of information to auditors

In the case of each of the persons wha are directors at the ime when the report 1

approved, the following applies

* 80 far as the director 15 aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of
which the Company's auditors are unaware, 2nd

«  the director has {aken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director
in order to make humself aware of any relevant audit information and to
estabhish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information

The audttors, PncewaterhouseCoopers LLE have indicated their willingness to
continug 1n office, and a resofubion that they be re-appointed will be proposed at
the Annual General Meeting

Annual general meeling - special business

The notice of the Annual General Meeting 1o be held on9 July 2008 may be found
al the back ¢f the Report and Accounts In additien to the routine business of the
megling the special business set out below will be transacted

Resolutions 8 to 10 - alletments and market purchases of shares

Resolution 8 to be propesed at the forthcoming Annua! General Meeting wall, if
approved by shareholders, authonse the directors to allet up to 15,325,763
ardinary shares representing 28 03% of the ordinary shares currently In 1ssue of
which 1,761,041 (3 2%) of the ordinary shares currently in 1ssue are currently
eserved for 1ssue under the Company’s share ephion schemes The balance
available for aliotment 15 therefore 13,564,722 ordinary shares, representing 24 8%
of the ordinary shares cumently in 1ssue ¥he Company does not cumently have any
treasury shares in i1ssue The direclors have no present intention of exercising the
authority except in connection with the 1ssue of shares under the Company s share
aption schemes This msolution will be proposed as an ordinary resolution aad will
expire at the Annual General Meeting to be held in 2009

In additien, Resolution 9 o be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
will give the directors authority under Section 95 of the Compantas Act 1985 to allot
equnty securities for cash to {1} exsting shareholders in properiion 10 their holdings
and (i) otherwise than pursuant 1o 1) but up to an aggregate nominal amount equal
10 £273,371 (representing 5% of the 1ssued ordinary share capital) This authonity will
also expire on the earlier of the conclusion of the Annual General Meeling to be held
In 2009 or 8 October 2009 This resolution will be proposed as a special resolution
The Company underiakes that it will not 1ssue shares on a non pre-emplive basis
exceedng 7 5% of (s issued share capital over a three year penod

The Companies Act 1985 allows shares purchased by the Campany to be held as
treasury shares, which may then be cancelled, sold for cash or used to meei the
Company’s obligations under its share option schemes The requirements to aflot
equily securities for cash to existing shareholders in proportion (o thew holdings
will also apply to the sales by the Company of any shares 1t holds as treasury
shares These requirements may be similarly disapplied by shareholders The
authonty scught, and limits set, by Resolutton 9 will then apply also to a sale of
treasury shares However, the directors have no present intention of holding shares
in freasury pursuant to the Companies Act 1985

Resolution 10 to be proposed at the forthcormung Annual General Meeting will give
the Compary authonty under Article 9 of its Articles of Assooation and Section
166 of the Companies Act 1985 undil the conclusion of the 2009 Annual General
Meeting to make market purchases of up to 10% of the 1ssued ordinary share capital
for cancellaion at a pnce of not less than 10 pence per ordinary share and not more
than 105% of the average of the mid-market quotations lor an ordinary share of the
Company (as derved from the Daily Official List of the London Stock Exchange) for
the five business days prior to the date of purchase

The authonty sought by Resolution 10, 1o make market purchases of its own
ordinary shares 1s intended to apply equally o shares to be held by the Company
as treasury shares 1n accordance with the Compamies Act However, as mentioned
above, the directors have no present intention of holding shares in treasury pursuant
to the Companies Act 1985 Resolutron 10 1s proposed as a special resolution and
will expie on the earhier of the 9 October 2009 and the Annual General Meeting to
be held in 2009 The directors do net intend (o exercise thas power other than
circurmstances where they consider this to be m the shareholders’ interests and
where this would result in an increase 1n earnngs per shate

li they do uhse Ites authority, the directors will nedher be encouraging nor
recommending sharenolders to buy or sell shares In the Company nor in any way
suggesting that d 1S an appropaiate Ume to deal in such shares
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Directors’ Report

Resolutions 8 to 10 are replacement authonties for exssting autherities taken at the
Annuzl General Meeting held on 10 July 2007

Resolution 11 - amendments te the company’s articles of associatien
Resolution 11 to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
requests shareholder approval n relation to amendments to articles of
association (“Arlicles") n order to update the Company's Articles to take
aceount of the changes to be brought about by the Companies Act 2006 n
relaion to directors’ duties and conflicts of interests

Uinder the Companies Act 2006, from 1 Cctober 2008 a director must avoid a
situation where he has, or can have, a direct or indirect interest thai conflicts, or
possibly may conflict with the company’s Inferests The requirement 15 very
broad and could apply, for example, 1f 2 director becomes a director of another
company er a trustee of another orgamisation The Companies Act 2006 allows
directars of pubhc companies o authonse conflicts and potential conflicts,
where appropnate, where the articles of association contain a provision to this
effect The Companies Act 2006 also allows the articles of association to
conlain other provisions for dealing with directors’ conflicts of interest to avord
a breach of duly The amendments proposed to the Articles give the Directors
authanity 1o approve such situations and to include other prowisions to allow
conflicts of interest to be dealt with in a similar way to the current position

There are saleguards which will apply when Directors decide whether to
authanise a conflict or potential conflici Furstly, only Directors who have no
interest 1n the matter being considered will be able to take the relevant degision,
and secondly, in taking the decision the Dwrectors must act in a way they
consider, in good faith, will be most likely to promote the Company’s success
The Dwectors will be able to impose hmits or conditions when gving
authonsation if they think this 15 appropnate

It 15 also proposed that the amendments to the Articles should contain
provisions relating 1o confidential information, attendance at Board meetings
and availability of Board papers to protect a Director being in breach of duty if a
conflict of inferest or potential conflict of interest anses These provisizns wil}
only apply where the pasiian gnang nse to the potential conflict has previousty
been authonsed by the Directors

Steven Glew %/
Company Secretary

20 May 2008
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent auditors' report to the members of Business Post Group plc

We have audited the Group and parent company financial statements (the
“hinancial slatements”) of Business Post Group plc for the year ended 31 March
2008 which compnse the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated and
Company Balance Sheets, the Cash Flow Statements, the Statements of Changes
i Shareholders’ Equity and the related notes These financial staiements have
been prepared under ihe accounting policies set out therein We have also audited
the formation in the Remuneratron Report that 1s descnbed as having been
audited

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibiliies for preparing the Arnual Repert, the Remuneration
Report and the fnancial statements n accordance with apphcable faw and
Inlemational Financiat Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union are set out in the Accountability and Directors' Responsibibities section of the
Corporate Governance statement

Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements and the part of the
Rermuneration Report to be audited 1n accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and Intematienal Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) This repor,
in¢luding the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members
as a body in accordance with Sechion 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no
other purpose  We do not, in giving this opimion accept or assume responsibility
fer any other purpose or to any other person 1o whom this report 1S shown or into
whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our pnior consent an
wrifing

We ieport to you our opinion as 10 whether the financiak statements give a frue and
far view and whethar the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration
Report to be audited have been properly prepared i accordance with the
Companigs Act 1985 and, as regands the Group financial statements, Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation We also report to you whether in gur opimion, information given
in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the financial statements

In addiion, we report fo you if, in our opinion, the company has not kept proper
accounting reconds, If we have not receved all the information and explanations we
require for our awdit, or «f information specried by faw regarding directors'
remuneration and ather {ransactions is not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Govemance Statement reflects the company's
comphance with the nine provisions of the 2006 FRC Combined Code specified for
our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authanty, and we report i
it does not We ame not required to consider whether the board's statements on
internal contra! cover all nsks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's corporate gevemance procedures of its nsk and contol procedures

We read other information contamed in the Annual Report and consider whether 1l
Is consistent with the audited financial statements The other information compnises
anly the Chairman’s Statement, the Highhights, the Business Review, the Financial
Overview the Dwectors and Adwsers Statement, the Corporate Govermance
statement, the Corporate Sacial Responsibility statement, the unaudited past of the
Remuneration Repart, the Direclors’ Report, the Five Year Summary of Results and
Notice of Megting We consider the implications for our report of we become aware
of any apparent misstaternents or maienal inconsistencies with the fancial
statements Our responsibilities do not exiend 1o any other information

Basis of audit opimon

We conducted our audit i accordance with Internattenal Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Audding Praciices Board An audit intludes
examination, on a ftest basis, of ewdence relevant 1o the amounts and
disclosures i the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report
to be audided It also in¢ludes an assessment of the significant estimates and
Judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting polictes are appropnate to the Group’s and
company's circumstances, consisiently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our auct s¢ as to oblain all the mformation and
explanations which we considered necessary in order 1o provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financral statements
and the part of the Remuneration Report fo be audited are free from matenial
misstaternent, whether caused by Iraud or other ireguianty ar error In forming
our opimion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentabion of
informatian (n the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report
to be audited

In our opivion

+ the Group hnancial statements give a true and fair view, 1n accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the stale of the Group's affairs
as at 31 March 2008 and of 1ts profit and cash (lows for the year then ended,

+ the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in
accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the European Union as apphied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, of the state of
the parent company’s affars as at 31 March 2008 and cash flows for the
year then ended

+ the finangial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report
to be audited have been properly prepared n accordance with the
Companigs Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation, and

« the information given in the Oiectors’ Report 15 consistent with the finangeal
statements

Pt Lo LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Actountanis and Registered Auditors
West London

20 May 2008

Reparl & Accounts 33




Consolidated Income Statement

for \he year ended 31 March 2003

2008 2007

Notes Em £m

Revenue 2 358 6 3256
Cost of sales _ (306 6) __(2756)

Gross profit 520 500
Administrative expenses (37 5) (39 6)

Operating profit before exceptionat items 145 121
Exceptional admenistrative items 3 - (17}

Operating profit 5 145 104
Finance costs 4 07) o7

Finance income ] 04 01

Profit betore taxation 142 98
Taxation 7 (45) (29}
Profit for the year i i
Basic earnings per share q 180p 128p
Diluted earmings per Share 9 17 Gp 12 6p

The profit fos the financral year anses from the Group's conlinuing actvities, and 1s wholly atinbutable to equily holders of the Company

The related notes numbered T to 35 form part of these fnancial statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at 31 March 2008

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Investment properties
Property plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Curren! assets
Inventories

Trade and other recervables
Cash and cash equivalents

LIABILITIES

Current liabilihies
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Current tax habiliies
Provisions

Net current assets

Non-current hatilities
Borrowtngs

Deferred tax liabiilies
Provisions

Net assels

Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary shares

Share premum

Retained earnings

Total shareholders’ equity

Notes

10
"
12

21

16

17
18

20
19

22

20
21
22

23

2008 2007
£m £m
85 95
12 12
10 11

368 373
05 -

491 491
03 0z

595 56 2

164 120

762 68 4

in {7
(56 4) {48 8)
{21) (14
(12) {06)
614) {52 5)
148 159
(85) {102
(10 05)
{04) {08)
99) (115)

540 535
55 55

166 162

319 318

540 535

The linancial siatements on pages 34 to 64 were appioved by the Board of Directors on 20 May 2008 and were signed on iis behali by

Peter Kane

Chasrman

The refated notes numbered T lo 35 lorm part of these financidl slatements

Steven Glew

Finance Director

% 7
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Company Balance Sheet

as al 31 March 2008

2008 2007
Notes £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assels
Investment in subsidianes 15 157 145
157 145
Current assets
Trade and cther recewvables 17 722 514
Current tax assets 06 05
Cash and cash equivatents 18 02 80
730 599
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Borrowtngs 20 (10} (10
Trade and other payables 19 {506} (263)
(516} (273)
Net current assels _21_1 326
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 20 (50} (60}
Net assels __32_1 ﬁ
Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary shares 23 55 55
Share premium 166 162
Retained earnings 100 194
Tota! shareholders’ equity 3z1 411

The financial statements on pages 34 1o 64 were approved by the Board of Direclors on 20 May 2008 and were signed on its behalf by

Peter Kane Steven Glew
Chaieman Finance Director

//%%V

The refated nofes numbered 1 to 35 form panl of these finangal statements
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Cash Flow Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2008

Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Notes £m £m £m £m
Operaling aclivities
Cash generated from aperations 25 257 282 33 223
Finance income received 04 01 03 -
Finance costs paid (07) on {04) 04
Taxahan paid (39) {14 - -
Net cash inflow from aperating activities 215 262 32 218
Investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equ:pment 02 23 - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 50) (85) - -
Purchase of intangible assets 1 {0 6} {10) - -
Net cash outflow from investing activities _{54_) {73} - -
Financing activities
Dwdends paid to shareholders (93) 43 (93) 93
Praceeds from re-financing under finance leases - 39 - -
Repayment of finance lease labiliies (on 03) - -
Nel proceeds from issue of ordinary share capital 03 02 03 02
Purchase of Business Post shares by the ESOT (10) - (10) -
Repayment of borrowings 20 (10) (10 (10) (10)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (117) {6 5) (110) {t0 1)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents 30 44 124 (78) 118
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 30 120 {04 80 {38)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 30 16 4 120 02 80

The related notes numbered 1 lo 35 form part of these fnancial statements
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Statements of Changes in
Shareholders’ Equity

for the year ended 31 March 2008

Group Notes

Balance as at 1 Apnl 2006

Onndends paid to shareholders 8
Employees' share aption scheme

- value of employee services

- praceeds from shares ssued

- exercise of share eptions

Tax on items taken directly to equity

Profit for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2007

Balance as at 1 April 2007

Dividends paid to sharehalders 8
Purchase of Business Post shares by the ESOT 23
Employees' share oplron scheme

- value of employee services

- proceeds from shares 1ssued

- exercise of share oplions

Tax on stems taken dizectly to equity

Profit for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2008

The refated notes numbered 160 35 form part of these hnancial statements
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Ordinary Share Retained Total
shares premium earnings Equity
£m Em £m fm
55 146 345 946
- - 93 {93

- - 10 10

- 02 - 02

- 14 (14 -

. - 01 01

- - 69 69

55 162 318 535
§5 162 e 535
- - {93) 83
- - o (10)

- - 09 09

- 03 - 03

. 01 1) .
- - {071 (01)

- - 97 87

995 166 319 540




Statements of Changes in
Shareholders’ Equity

for the year ended 31 March 2008

Company Notes

Balance as at 1 April 2006

Dwwdends paid to shareholders 8
Employees' share option scheme

- proceeds from shares 1ssued

- Increase n investment in subsidianes

- exercise of share options

toss for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2007

Balance as at 1 April 2007

Dividends paid to sharshalders 8
Purchase of Business Post shares by the ESOT 23
Employees' share option scheme

- proceads from shares 1ssued

- INcrease in nvestment i subSidiaries

- exercise of share options

Loss for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2008

The related notes numbered 1 1o 35 form part of these linancial statements

Ordinary Share Retained Total
shares premivm earnings Equity
£m £m fm Em
55 146 277 478
- - {93) (93)
- n2 - 02
- - 28 28
- 14 (14)
- - 04) (¢ a)
55 162 194 411
55 162 194 411
- - (93) {93)
- - (10) (in)
- 03 - 03
- - 13 13
- o1 01) -
- - (03) (03)
5% 166 100 321
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1

Principal Accounting Policies
Accounling policies for the year ended 31 March 2008

The pnncipal accounting policies adopted 1 the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below These palicies have been consistently
apphed to all the vears presented, unless otherwise stated

Basis of preparalion

These financial statements have been prepared (n accordance with the
Companies Act, 1985 and those IFRS standards as adopted by the
European Union and IFRIC interpretations which are effective as at 31
March 2008 The following Standards, Interpretations and Amendments,
which became effective for and were adopted duning the year ended 31
March 2008 had no matenal impact on the Group's results or financial
positton

Effective
date
IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments  Disclosures',
and the complementary amendment {0 1AS 1
"Presentation of Financial Staternents -
Capiial Disclosures'

IFRIC 8 'Scope of IFRS 2'

1 January 2007

1 May 2006

1 June 2006

1 November 2006

IFRIC 9 ‘Re-assessment of Embedded Dervatives'
IFRIC 10 'Interim Financial Reporting and Imparrment

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury

Share Transactions' 1 March 2007

The following Standards, interpretations and Amendments are effective
subsequent to the year end and consequently have not been adopted for
the year ended 31 March 2008 Apphcation of these I1s not expected to
result in a material change to the reported Group's results or financial
position

IFRS 3 {Revised) ‘Business Combinations’ 1 July 2009
1 January 2008
1 January 2009
1 danuary 2008

1 July 2008

IFRS 8 'Operating Segments'

IAS 23 {Revised) 'Borrowirig Costs'

¥FRIC 12 'Service Concession Arrangemenls'
IFRIC 13 'Custamer Loyalty Programmes'

IFRIC 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,

Minimum Fund:ng Requirements and their Interaction’ 1 January 2008

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
conventian

The preparation of financial statements i conformily with generally
accepted accounting principles, requies the use of estmates and
assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of assets and bialihes at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reparting period Although these estimates are based
¢n managament's best knawledge of the amount, evem or actions, actual
results ulbimately may differ from those estimates

The critical accounting judgements and the key sources of estimation
uncertarnty are detailed in note 34
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The Group financial statements consolidate the financral Statemants of Business
Post Group ple and s subsidiary contpames for the year ended 31 March 2008
Agvantage has been faken of Sechion 230 of the Companies Act 1985 not to
include the Campany's owr: profit and less account The loss of the Company
for the year was £0 3m (2007 £0 4m)

Consotidation

On adophion of IFRS, the Company efected not o restate business
combinations pror to 1 Apnl 2004

Subsidiaries are consohdated from the date on which conirol is fransferred
to the Group and cease to be consolidaled from the date on which control
Is transferred out of the Group On acquisition of a subsidiary, all the
subsidiary's assets and labihties thal exst at the date of acquisition are
recorded at their fair values reflecting their condition at that date Changes
to those assets and liabilities, and the resulting gains and losses that anse
after the Group has gained contrel of the subsidiary are credited or charged
to the post acquisiiion income statement

Intra-group transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation and
consistent accounting policies are used throughout the Group for the
purposes of the consolidation

The resulls, assels and lizhiliies of the franchise network are not
consohdated into the Group's results as the Group does not have a
participating share ownership in the franchises, or the abitity to direct and
gontrol thewr activties Additionally, the Group does not bear or benefit in
the majonty of the nsks and rewards

Goodwill

Goodwll represents the excess of the cost of an acquisihon over the far
value of 1dentifiable net assets of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition
Goodwll s measured at cost less impairment losses and 1s tested for
impairment at least annually

The carrying valug of goodwill 1s cost less aceumulated impairment losses
Goodwill 15 allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing The allocation 1s made to those cash-generating unils
that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwll arose

(On the dispesal of a business, goodwil] relating to that business remaining
on the balance sheet I1s included i the determination of the profit or toss
on disposal

Intangible assels

Intangble assets include acquired computer software licences not part of the
operating software acquired with a related p:ece of hardware These are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
speciiic software These costs are amortised on a straight line basis over their
estmated useful lives, normally three to four years

Costs that are directly essociated with development of identehiable and unique
software products generated for use by the Group, and that will probably
generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised
as intangible assets These represent the direct employrnent costs of software
develapers time spent on refevant projects Computer software development
costs recognised as assets are amorhsed over ther estmated useful
BCONOMIC IIves being three years




Notes to the Financial Statements

Investmen! properties

Investment properties compnse of freehold and leasehold land and
buildings held for long term rental yiedds and are not occupied by the
Group

Investmen! properlies are accounted for under the cost mode!, at cost less
accumulated deprecialion and accumulatad impairment losses

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cosi less accurnulated
depreciabion and any impasrment 10 value Land 1s not depreciated
Depreciation 15 caleulated over the estimated useful economic hfe of the
asset as follows

Freehold bulldings fifty years on a strzight line basis

Short leasehold improvements the penod of the lease an a

straight line basis

10% to 33% annualty on a
strarght ine basis

14% 1o 33% annually on a
straight ling basis

Motor veticles, plant and equipment
Computer equipment

The normal expected useful ives and residual values of the major categories
of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually

The carmping value of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at least
annually Any resultant impairment losses are charged immediately to the
Income statement

Assets that are subject (o depreciation are tesled for impairment whenever
evenis or changes n cucumstances ndicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable An impairment loss 1s recogmised for the ameunt by
which the asset's camying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The
recoverable amount s the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and
value in use

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments 1n Gsoup undertakings are stated al cost Iess any provision for
impairment

The Company reflects the far value of share-based payments as an
investment in subsicdiaries

Inventories

Inventories represented by fuel stocks held by the Group, are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value

Cost 15 determmned using the first-in-first-out method and net realisabte
valug 1s the esbimated selling price less costs of disposal 1n the ordinary
course of business

Finance and operaling leases

Leasing agreements, which transier to the Group substantzally all the nisks and
rewards of ownership of an asset, are treated as i the asset has been
purchased outnght The assets arg inttuded n foed assels and the capital
elements of the leasing commiiments are shown as obligations under finance
leases The lease rentals are treated as consisng of capital and nierest
elements The capital element is apphed 1o reduce the outstanding obligations

and the interest element 1s charged aganst profit so as to give constant
periodic rates of charge on the remaining balance quistanding at each
accounting penod Assels held under finance leases are depreciated over the
shoder of the lease term and the usetul lives of equivalent owned assets

Leases where the Group does not refain substantally all the nsks and
rewards of ownership of an asset, are classified as operating leases
Operattng iease renal payments are recognised as an expense In the
income statement on a strasght line basis over the tesm of the lease

Revenue

Revenue reflects all sales made by Business Post, whether delivered by
network services or a franchisee, as the Group remains the pnincipal in all
transactions Revenue 1s recognised in the accounting penod i which
tonsignments are delivered to cusiomers

Income from investrment properties s recognised on a straight line basis over
the term of the lease even If the payments are not received on such a basis

All revenues are stated net of value added tax
Cost of sales

Cost of sales reflects all the direct costs incurred in the collection and
delivery of a consignment, ncluding the ¢osts of sub-contracted and
employed dnivers, inehaul costs, and Royal Mail access costs, together
with the direct costs ¢f eparating the network

Administrative costs

Adminstrative costs reflect all the establishment and ceniral support costs
of the Group, including the remuneration of non-operational site based staff
and head office personnel, depreciatton, and bad debts

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax cumently payable and
deferred tax

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for the year Taxable
profit differs from the net prohit i the meome statement because
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are naver faxable or deductible

Full prowision 1s made for deferred taxation on all taable temporary
differences Deferred lax assets and l1abihties are recognised separately on
the balance sheet Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that
they are expected io be recoverable

Deferred taxabion 1s recagmised in the sncome statement unless if relates 1o
taxable transactions faken directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax
15 also recogmised tn equity The deferred tax is released 1o the income
siatement at the same time as the laxable transaction 1s recagmised n the
Income statement

Pension costs

The Group spansors employees' personal penston plans The assets of the
plans are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds The pension costs charged n the income statement
represent contributions payable by the Group to the plans together with the
administration charges of the plans
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Forelga currencies

Transactions in foreign currencees are recorded in sterling at the rate ruling
at the iransackon date Monelary assets and habilities denommated in
foreign currencies are transtated at the rate of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date All exchange difierences ansing from trading
transactions are dealt with i the income statement

Share-based paymenis

The costs of equity-settled share-based payments are recognised in the
income statement with a corresponding increase in equity over the vesting
penod as services are prowided to the Group The charge 15 based on the
fair vaiue of the equity instrument granted and the number of equity
insiruments that are expected to vest

The fair valfue 1s measured al grant dale and fakes account of vesing
conditiens thal relate to the market price of the Company's shares In order
to determing the value of the instrument a pricing mode! relevant to the
type of instrument 15 used

The costs of cash-setiled share-based payments are recogn:sed in the
income statement with a corresponding increase n fiabilities over the
vesting peniod as services arg provided to the Group The charge is based
on the fair value of the hability at each reporting date, with any changes in
fair value recagised in the income statement

Pravisians

Provisions are recogmsed when the Group has a present obligation {legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it i1s probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required o seitle the
obhgatien and a rehatle estmate can be made of the amount of the
obligatign

Where ihe Group expects a provision to be Rimbursed, for exampte under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement 1s recognised as a separate asset but
only when the reimbursement 1s virtually certain  If the effect of the tme
valug of money 1s matenal, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects cument market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the nisks
specific 1o the habiity Where discounting 1s used, the increase m the
provision due to the passage of tme 15 cecogmised as a finance gost

Exceplional fems

Material and non-recusning items of income and expense are disclosed 1n
the income statement as excephional items Examples of items which may
qive nse to disclosure as exceptional items include matenal gamns or
losses on ihe disposal of businesses or fixed assets, materal asset
impairments, and business reorgamisation and restructunng costs

Dividends
Internim dmdends are recogmised as a distnbution from retained earnings in
{he period n which they are paid

Final dividends are recegnised as a distrtbutson from retained earnings in
the pertod in which they are approved at the general meeting
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Financtal instruments

Financial assets and financiat lizbilities are recogmised in the balance sheet
when the Group becomes a party o the contractual prowisions of the
instrument Financial assets are de-recognised when the Group no fonger
has the rights lo cash flows, the nsks and rewards of ownership or control
of the asset Financial labililies are de-recogmised when the oblhgation
undes the liability es dsscharged, cancelled or expires

Trade and other receivables These are recognised and carried at the
onginal invoice amount Jess an allowance for any non-collectible amounts
Pravision is mzde when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not
be abte to collect the debts Bad debts are wniten off to the incorme
slatement when dentified

Franchise receivables These are recognised and camed at the onginat
amount owed to the Group less an allowance for any non-collectible
amounts Provision 1s made when there 1§ objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect the recevable Bad debts are wrtten off 1o
the income statement when identified

Share capital Crdinary shares are ¢lassified as equity Incremental costs
directly attnbutable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction from the proceeds received Own equity instruments that are
reacquired (treasury shares) or shares held in the Employee Share
Ownershup Trust (ESOT) are deducted from equity No gain or loss is
recogrised in the income statement on the purchase, sale, 1ssue or
cancellation of the Group's own equity Instruments

Interest rate cap The fair value of the instrument 1s re-measured at each
reporling date, with any gains or losses credited or charged to the income
statement

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings All interest-beanng loans and
borowings are iniially recognised at fair value plus directly atiributable
transaction costs After (nibial recognmibion, 1nterest-beanng loans and
borrowangs are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method Amortised cost s calculated by taking into
account any tssue costs, and any discount or premium

Cash and cash equivalents These compnse cash in hand and current
balances with banks and similar institutions, which are readify convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant nsk of
changes in value and have an onginal matunty af three months or less

For the purpose of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalenis
consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdraits




2 Segmental information

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Group's primary segment reporting 1s by business sector with geographical reporting being the secondary format The business segments consist of Parcel

Services {B2B, International and B2C), Mail Services (UK Mail), Spectalist Services (UK Pallets and Courrer), and Other {Neiwork costs and Central Support)

Central Suppart comprises common Group Head Office functions including HR, finance and IT Eliminations largely compnise of non-aperational infer-segmeantal
balances Costs, assets and liabilities are allocated to specific business segments wherever possible There are no sates between business segments

The Group manages ifs business segments o a nahional basis, with all its aperations in the UK, as are nearly all of the cuslomers The Group therefore considers

that 1t operates in one geographic market, namely the UK

Primary reporting format - business segments
The business segment results for the year ended 31 March 2008 are as follows

Parcel Mail Specialist
Services Services Services Other  Elminations Group
fm fm £m £m £m £m
Revenue 1798 1373 415 - - 3586
Operating profhit/{loss) before exceplional items 154 100 13 (122} 145
Excephional nems - adminisirative expenses - - - - - -
Operating proft/(loss) 154 100 13 (122) - 145
Finance costs (07)
Finance income 04
Profit before taxation 142
Taxation {4 5)
Net profit atinibutable to equity shareholders 97
Segment assets 567 496 71 401 (312) 1253
Segment liabilities (27 9) (36 0) (250) (136) 32 (73
Other segment items
Caprtal expenditure
- Property, plant and equipment (noie 13} 26 04 03 17 - 50
- Intangible assets (note 11) - - 03 - 03 - 06
Depreciation - investment properties (note 12) - - - 01 - 01
Depreciation - owned assets (note 13) 19 09 02 23 - 53
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 11} - 03 01 02 - 06
Impairment of trade recewvables 05 01 01 - - a7
The business segment results for the year ended 31 March 2007 are as follows
Parcel Mall Specialist
Services Services Services Other  Ehrminations Group
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 193 8 803 15 - - 3256
Operating profit/(loss) before axceptional items 151 64 20 (114) - 121
Exceptional items - administrative expenses {17 - - - - {(17)
Operating profit/{loss) 134 64 20 (114 - 104
Finance costs @n
Finance income g3
Profit before taxation 98
Taxation (29)
Net profit atiributable te eguity shareholders 69
Segment assels 614 ng 81 503 (34 2) 1175
Segment liabilities (37 7) (25 3) (175) (17 7) 342 {64 0)
Other segment 1tems
Capital expenditure
- Property, plant and equipment {note 13) 24 42 01 21 - 88
- Intangible assets {note 11) - 08 - 0?2 - 10
Depreciation - investment properbies (note 12) - - - - - -
Depreciation - gwned assels {note 13) 22 05 04 25 _ 56
Amortisation of infangible asseis (note 11) - 03 - 02 - 05
Impairment of trade receivables 06 01 04 - - 11
Imparment of franchise recewvables 23 - - - - 23
Company

The Company's busingss 1s to nvest in its subsidianes and, therefore 1t operales in a single segment
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 Exceptional items

2008 2007

f£m £m

Operations restructure 07 -
FedEx terminatien cosls - release of provision 7 13
Prowvision agatnst prior years franchise balances . 15
Profit on sale of freehold property - {11)
Exceptional items - 17

Operations restructure

During the year, a number of structural changes were made to operations, designed to both integrate the different pasts of the Group mare, and to unprove the network
Infrastructure This has resulted in & number of structural changes in operat:onal and sales management, and the establishment of specialist customer care centres
The anticipated redundancy costs of £0 7m have been provided for in these financial statements

FedEx termination costs

Following the cessation of the contract o act as FedEx's glabat service participan in the UK from 30 Apnil 2007, anticipated exit costs of £1 3m were provided for
at 31 March 2007, mcluding one-off redundancy and management restructuring costs, vefucle livery removal, unifsrm replacement and legal expenses

A surplus proviston of £0 7m has been released, following a number of successiul management imbiatives to reduce the cast of relivery of the vehicle flget, during
the year ended 31 March 2008

Provision against franchise-related balances

During the year ended 31 March 2006 a £3 2m prowision was made against the outstanding franchise debt Recoverability of the amounts due frem franchises
particularly those poorly performing franchises brought back into Corposate ownership, had been less than anticipated resulting in the need to provide a further €1 5m
agamst that debt, duning the yvear ended 31 March 2007

Sale of freehold property
The sale of the Bristol freeho’d properiy on 16 February 2007 generaied proceeds of £2 2m before laxes, realising a net profit of £1 1m on disposal
Finance costs - net

2008 2007
£m £m

Interest payable on
Term loan (04) {04)
Bark overdrait - 02)
Finance leases 03 01)
Finance cosls {07) 07
Intesest recevable on
8ank balances 04 03
Finance ncome 04 01
Finance costs - net (03) 06
Operating profit

2008 2007

fm £m

The following 1tlems have been charged/{credited) e arrving at operateng projix
Employee benehts expense (note 6} 653 633
Cost of inventones recognised {included in cost of sales) 107 93
Profii on sale of preperty, plant and eguipmen - {12}
Deprecialion of investment properkies (note 12) 01 -
Depreciation of owned property, plani and equipment (note 13) 53 56
Amortisation of intangibles (included in adminisirative expenses) {note 11) 06 05
Operating lease rentals payable
- Plant and machinery 83 88
- Praperty 43 47
Repairs and mainiznance expenditure on property, plant and equipment 34 29
QOther operating lease rentals recevable
- Plant and machinery (05} (0 5}
- Property 04} {06)
Trade seceivables impairment (included in administrative expanses) 07 11
(Reversal of impairment)impairment of franchise recevables (included in administrative expenses) {01) 23
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Services provided by the Company's auditor
During the year the Group obtaned the following services from the Company's auditor and its associaies

Fees payable te the Company's auditor for the audit of the parent company and consofidated Financial Stataments

Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for other services
- The audit of the Company's subssdianes pursuant to tegistation

- Other services pursuant to legislation

- Tax services

Employees and directors

Employee benehit expense for the Group during the year

Wages and salanes
Social secunity costs
Other pension costs™
Share-based payments

*Other pension costs all relate to defined contnbution schemes

Average manthly number of people (including executive directors) employed

By business group

Parcel services
Mail services
Specialist services
Central

The average number of persons employed by the Company was Nil (2007 Nil)

Key manzgement compensation

Salaries and short-term employee benefits
Post-empioyment benefils

Termunation benefits

Share-based payments

The key management figures given above include the main board diectors, both executive and non-gxecutive

2008
£000

120

2008
Number

2,303

2008
£000

1,555
117

2007
£000

116

2007
Number

2,270
17
366
144

2,897

2007
£000

1,055
156

327
1,630
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Directors remuneration

2008 2007
£000 £000
Aggregate emoluments 1,000 1,211
Aggregate gains made on the exercise of share options - 14
Company contnbutions to money purchase pension schemes* 96 92
1,086 1,317
* Contnbutions were made in respect of three (2007 four) directors
Furlher details of directors' eroluments are set out in the Remuneration Report
7 Taxation
2008 2007
fm £m
Analysis of charge i period
Curvent tax - current year . 48 37
Cureent 1ax - adjustment in respect of prior years (02) {02)
Deferred tax (note 21} - current year (02} {0 6)
Deferred tax (note 21) - adjusiment in respect of prior years 01 -
Taxation 45 29

The deferred taxation credit ncorporates the effect of the reduction i the corporation tax rale from 30% to 28% effective 1 Apnl 2008

The diiferences between ihe lotal current tax shown above and the amount catculated by applying the standard rate of UK corporation tax to the profil before tax
are explained below

2008 2007
£m £m
Profit en ordinary activifies before fax 142 98
Profit on ordinary activities muftiphed by rate of corperation tax in the UK of 30% (2007 30%) 43 29
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 03 02
Adjustment m respect of pnor years (0 1) 02
Total tax charge 45 29
Additionally, £0 1m of deferred tax has been debiled (2007 £0 1m credited) directly to equity i respect of share options
8§ Dwidends

2008 2007
Group and Company £m £m
Final 2007 paid 10 80p (2006 10 80p) per 10p share 58 58
Intenm paid 6 40p (2007 6 40p) per +0p share 35 35

In agdition, the directors are proposing & tinal dividend in respect of the finantial vear ended 31 March 2008 of 10 8p per share which will abserb an estimated
£5 8 mullion of shareholders' funds H will be paid on 25 July 2008 to shareholders who are on the register of members on 27 June 2008

9  Earnings per Share

Bastc eamings per share 15 calculated by dividing the profit for the year {the “earnings”) attnbutable to ordinary shareholders by the weighled average number of
erdinary shares outstanding duning the year, excluding those held in the employee share ownership trust (note 23}, which are treated as cancelled

For iluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares 1n 1ssue 15 adjusied i assume conversion of all dilulive potential erdinary shares
The Group has two classes of dilutive poteniial ordinary shares those share opbons granied to employees where the exercise pnce 15 less than the average market
price of the Company's oidinary shares dunng the year, and the contingently 1Ssuabte shares under the Group's Long Term Incentive Plan
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Reconciliahions of the earnings and weighted average number of shares used in the calculations are set out below

2008 2007
Weighted Weighted
average Per share average Per share
Earnings number of amount Earnings number of amount
£m shares pence £m shares pence
Basic EPS
Earnings attributable 1o ordinary shareholders 97 54,068,346 180 69 54,150,544 128
Effect of dilutive shares
Options - 81,552 - - 65,794 -
Long Term Incentive Plan - 1,360,229 (0 5) - 750,829 02)
Dituted EPS 97 55,480,127 175 69 54,967 167 126
Basic EPS
Earmings attributable to ordinary shareholders 97 54,068,346 130 69 54,150,544 128
Exceptional items - - - - 11 - 20
Adjusted EPS* 97 54,068,346 180 80 54,150,544 148
Effect of ditutive shares
Options - 51,562 - - 65,794 -
Long Term Incentive Plan - 1,360,229 05) - 750,829 G2}
Diluted Adjusted EPS* 97 55,480,127 175 80 54,967,167 148

* Adjusted and diluted adusted earnings per share have been caloulated excluding the excephional items and the associated tax impact

10 Goodwill
2008 2007
Group fm £m
Cost

At 1 Apnl and 31 March

Aggregale impairment
At 1 Apnl and 31 March

o
] on

Net baok value
At1 April and 31 March

w w
o 1 [Sa]

w
e

As required under IAS 36 lmpairment of Assets', goodwill has been allocated to the lowest level of cash-generating unit and has been tested for impairment
The carrying amounts of goodwill by company are as follows,

2008 2007

£m fm

BXT Limited 16 16
UK Patlets Ltd 79 79
Net book value at 31 March 95 95

Goodwill 1s tested fer impairment annually at the time the Group prepares its annual budgets Each impairment rewiew takes account of the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating units which 1$ determmed on a value in use basis The 2009 budget was extrapolated using growih rates i the rangs of 1% 1o 6% pa for
the first five years and 2 25% therealter, being the long term GDP growth rate of the UK econorty The pre-tax discount rates are i the 7% to 8% range

Management believes that there will be no structural changes in erther the palletised goods or technscal couner markets which will affect these forecasts
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11 Intangible assets

Acquured Internal software
software licences developments Tatal
Group £m £m £fm
Cost
At 1 Apnl 29 - 29
Addibons 03 03 06
Disposals {01) . {01)
At 31 March 2008 31 03 34
Aggregate amortisation
At1 Apnl 17 - 17
Charge for the year 06 - 06
Bisposals 1) - {0 1)
At 31 March 2008 22 - 22
Net book value at 31 March 2008 09 03 12
Acquired Internal sofiware
software licences developments Total
Group £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Aprik 19 - 19
Additiens 10 - 10
At 31 March 2007 29 - 29
Apgregate amortisation
At 1 Apnl 12 - 12
Charge for the year 0% - 05
At 31 March 2007 17 - 17
Net beok value at 31 March 2007 12 - 12
At amostisation charges in the year have Deen charged thiough admnistialive expenses
Computer software has a useful economic life of between 3 and 4 years
12 Investment properties
2008 2007
Group £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apal and 31 March 17 17
Accumulated depreciation
At Aprl a6 a6
Charge for the year 01 -
At 3t March 07 06
Net book value at 31 March 10

-
—_
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13

Investment properties are accounted for under the cost model, at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses and are depreciated
over fifty years on a straight line basis

One (2007 ane) investment praperty 1s held by the Group, located in the West Midlands, and s being subilet under an operating lease The rental ingome
recogmsed in the year was £0 2m (2007 £0 3m) Direct operating expenses incurred were Sml (2007 £nily

The property was valued by qualified professional valuers working for the company of DTZ Debenham Tie Leung, Chartered Surveyors, acting mn the capacity of
Externa! Valuers in March 2008 All such valuers are Charlered Surveyors, being members of the Royal Institution of Charlered Surveyors (*RICS") D77
Debenham Tie Leung 15 a wholly owned subsidiary of DTZ Holdings plc (the "DTZ Group®) In the financial year ta 30 Apnl 2008, the proportion of total fees
payable by the Group to the tolal fee income of the DTZ Group was less than 5%

The property was valued on the basis of Market Value at £3 Om (2007 £4 Om), pnmanly derived using cemparable recent market transackons on arm's length
terms The vatualion was carned out in accordance with the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standasds

The Company does nat own any mvestment properties (2007 mif)

Property, plan and equipment

Maotar
Short vehicles
Freehold land leasehold plant and Computer
and buildings  improvements equipment equipment Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnil 2007 27 26 a7 127 617
Additiens 02 02 28 18 50
Disposals - {01} 20 {45) {6 6)
AL 31 March 2008 219 217 255 100 601
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2007 27 06 17 94 244
Charge for the year 04 02 26 21 53
Disposals - (01) {19) {49) (69)
At 31 March 2008 3 07 124 70 232
Net book value at 31 March 2008 188 20 131 30 369
Mator
Short vehicles
Freehold land leasehald plant and Computer
and buildings Improvements eguipment equipment Total
Group £m gm £m £m £m
Cost
Al 1 Apnil 2006 225 15 198 121 559
Additions 05 12 53 18 88
Disposals {13) {0 1) {0 4) {12) (30)
At 31 March 2007 217 26 247 127 617
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 Apnik 2006 25 05 98 81 207
Charge for the year 04 02 25 25 56
Disposals 02 {01) (04 {12) {19)
At 31 March 2007 27 06 1n7 94 24 4
Net book value at 31 March 2007 190 20 130 33 373
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The Company owned no tangible fixed assets at 31 March 2008 (2007 £nil}

Depreciation cost 15 all shown in administrative expenses

14 Assels held under finance leases
Assets held under finance leases have the following net book valug

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

2008 2007
fm £m
64 54

(12 07
42 47

Inctuded n assets held under finance leases are plant and equipment with a net book value of £3 6m (2007 £3 9m) and compuler seftware of £0 6m (2007

£0 8m)

The majority of the leases are for an initial contractual penod of 7 years, with aptions to renew for varying further peniods at fixed rates The interest rate inherent

1n the lease 1s fixed at the coniract date for the term of the lease

15 Investmenis
Company
Fixed asset investments
Cost of Investments in subsldiaries
At 1 Apnl

Increase n nvestments in subsidianes - share-based payments
At 31 March

Aggreqate tmpawrment
At 1 Apnit and 31 Mazch

Net book amount as at 31 March

A hist of the principal subsidiary undertakings 15 given in note 33

16 Inventories

Fuel siock

The Group consumed £10 7m (2007 £9 3m) of inventonies duning the year
Inventories are carmed at the lower of cast and net realisable vafue

17 Trade and other receivables

Trade recevables

less provision for imparment

Trade recewvables, net of provisions for impairment
Amounts dug irom subsidiary undestakings

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income
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Group

2008 2007
£m fm
558 536
(07) {08)
551 528
01 02
43 32
595 562

2008 2007
£m £m
149 121
12 28
161 149
04 04
157 145
2008 2007
£m £m
@3 02
Commpany

2008 2007
£m £m
722 513
01

122 514
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Concentrations of credit nsk with respect to trade recewvables are hmited due to the Group's customer base being large and unrelated, with no one customer
accounting tor mare than 5% of trade recewvables

Trade receivables that are nesther past due nor imparred are expected ta be fully recovered as there is ne recent hustory of defauit or any indications that the
debtors will not meet their payment obligations At the year end there are no trade recevables (2007 none) whose terms have been renegobiated and would
otherwise be past due or impaired

Impaired recervables mainly relate to deblers in financial difficully where defaults in payments have eccurred, liability for payment 1s disputed, or debtors have
entered into bankruptcy Trade receivables are impaired when there 15 objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the onginal terms However, the Group expects a portion of these receivables to be recovered The maximum exposure 1o credit nsk at the reporting dale 1s
the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above

The Group does not hold any collateral as secunty and no assels have been acquired through the exercise of any collateral previously hetd

The Group's trade recelvables are stated after allowances for bad and doubtful debts, an analysis of which 1s as follows

2008 2007
£m £m
At 1 Apnl 08 13
Amount ubilised through administrative expenses (02) (05)
Amount charged through admunistrative expenses 01 -
At 31 March 07 08
As at 31 March, the againg anatys:s of trade receivables 1s as fallows
2008 2007
£m £m
Less than 30 days 540 514
Between 30 - 60 days 11 11
Between 60 - 90 days 02 03
More than 90 days (02) -
851 528

As al 31 March 2008, trade recevables of £0 8m {2007 £) 9m) were impaired The amount of provision was €0 7m a 31 March 2008 (2007 £0 8m) The
age:ng of these impaired trade recervables 1s as follows

2008 2007

£m £m

Less than 30 days 02 01
Between 30 - 60 days 01 0t
Between 60 - 90 days a1 01
More than 90 days 04 06
08 09

As at 31 March 2008, trade recevables of £11 8m {2007 £10 5m) were past due but not smpaired The ageing of these trade receivables is as follows

2008 2007

£m £m

Less than 30 days 107 92
Between 30 - 60 days 11 10
Between 60 - 90 days 02 03
More than 90 days {02) -
118 105

At 31 March 2008, there were £mil (2007 £mil) trade receivables impaired but not past due for payment
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The Group's franchise receivables are staied after allowances for bad ang doubtful detis an analysis of which s as follows

2008 2007

£m £m

At 1 Apnl 13 57
Amount charged through administrative expenses - 13
Utihsed during the penod 11) 57
At 31 March 02 13

The franchise prowssion represenis a 100% prowision aganst all outstanding franchise debt

None (2007 none) of the other classes of financial assets within trade and other recemvables contain impaired assets
Company

Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings de not bear interest, and are repayakble on demand

None (2007 none) of the Company's trade and other receivables were past due at the year end and the Company does not consider 1t necessary to provids for
any imparments

18 Cash and cash equivalenis

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £€m fm £m
Cash at bank and n hand 164 120 02 80

The effective interest rate on the cash and bank balances was approxmately 4 8% (2007 4 9%), accruing on a daily basis

Cash and cash equivalents include the follewing for the purpese of the cash flow statement

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 16 4 120 02 80
19 Trade and other payables - current
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m m m £m
Trade payables 26 242 - 01
Other creditors 04 01 - -
Amounts owed to franchises 15 28 . .
Amounts owed to Subsidiary undertakings . - 506 261
Other taxes and social securnity payable 93 91 - -
Accruals 107 125 - 01
Deferred income 19 01 - -
56 4 44 8 50 6 263

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings do not bear interest, and are repayable on demand
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20 Borrowings

Current

Amounts due within one year or on demand
Sterling term loan (unsecured)
Finance lease obligations (see note 26)

Non-current

Amounts due after one year
Sterling term loan {unsecured)
Finance lease obhgations {see nole 26)

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m
10 10 10 i0
07 07 - -
17 17 10 10
50 60 50 60
a5 42 - -
85 102 50 60

The term loan, whilst unsecured, 1s guaranteed by subsidianes of Business Post Group plc and 1s repayable in equal annual instalments of £1m

[nterest an the term loan 15 reset every quarier As at 31 March 2008 the effective rate of interest payable on the term loan was approximately 6 2% (2007 5 7%)

The loan 1s subject to various cavenants

Finance lease minimum payments
Less than 1 year

Between 1 and 5 yeass

Over 5 years

Total minimurm lease payments
Futura finance ¢charges

Present value of finance leases

21 Deferred tax

Deferred fax 1s calcutated in full on temporary difierences under the liability method using a tax rate of 28% (2007 30%)

The mavement on the deferred tax account 1s as shown below

Deferred tax accoun}

At1Apnl

Income statement (charge)/credit
{Charged)/credited to equity

At 31 March

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are anly offset where there 1s a legally enforceable ight of offset and there 1s an intention to settle the balances net

Deferred tax assels

At 1 Apnit

Income statement (charge)/credit
(Charged)/credited to equity

Al 31 March

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m m £m £m
07 07 -
35 38 -
. 04 -
42 49 -
07) {09 - -
35 40 - -
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m m tm £m
(05) (12 - 01
01 06 - {on
1) 01 - -
(05) (05 . n
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
€m £m £m £m
- 01 01
06 0 1) {01)
on - -
5 - =
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22

Deierred tax assets, r2lating only to share based payments, are calcufated on the ditference between the market price at the balance sheel date and the option
exercise pnce The excess of the deferred fax over the cumulative incame statement charge 1s recogmised in equity

There are no unrecognised deferred tax assets

The movement on the deferred {ax fiability account 15 as shown below

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Deferred tax habilities £m £m £m fm
At1 April 05 12 - -
Income statement charge/(credd) 08 arn - -
At 31 March 10 05 - -

Deferred ax liabilities, which largely relate to accelerated capial allowances are calculated on the difference between the accounting ret book value of the
assels and their carrying amount for tax purposes

The defered income tax (charged)/credited to equity dunng the year 15 as follows

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m
Deferred tax on share-based payments (01) 01 - -

Budget 2008 changes

The 2008 Budget inluded provisions to phase out Industnal Bullding Allowances over a penod of 4 years, which will effect the deferred tax calculation This
budget has yet to be substantively enactad as it remains to be approved by the House of Commons and the House of Lords Therefore, in accordance with IFRS
reporting requirements, the effect of these provisiens has not been included in these financial statements

It 1s estimated that 1f the proposed change lo phase out Industnal Building Allowances 1s enacted, it will result in a deferred lax charge of £2 3m, with a
corresponding ncrease in the deferred tax liabidity

Pravisions

Properties Claims Totals
£m £m £m
At 1 April 2007 11 03 14
Charged tg the income statement 06 01 07
Utilised 1n the year {02) (03) (05)
At 31 March 2008 15 01 16

Provisions have been analysed between current and non-current as follows
2008 2007
£m £m
Current 12 06
Nen-current 04 D8
16 14

Properties

The provision for property leases largely refates 1o dilapidations on propertres under leases expaning within 1 year and up to 13 years The properties have been
inspected by the Group Prepesty Manager, and estmates made for the anticipated dilapidation expenditure to be ncurred prior to sub-letbing, or reversion of
the lease

Additionally, the Group holds leases aver two vacant properties, both of which are on the market with a view to sub-letting Provision 1s made for rental duning
the anticipated time hat these properties will be on the market In determining this provision, the cash flows have been discounted at the Group's pre-tax
borrowing rate

Claims
The £0 1m provision far clzims relates to a number of legal actions which are anticepated to be settled in the current year
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23 Called up share capital

24

Group and Company 2008 2007
£m £m

Authonised

70,000,000 (2007 70,000,000) ordinary shares of 10p each 70 70

Issued, allotted and fully pard

2008 2008 2007 2007
Ordinary shares of 10p each Shares £m Shares £m
At 1 April 54,595,502 55 54,530,862 55
Allotted under share optron schemes 78,735 - 64,640 -
At 31 March 54,674,237 55 54,595,502 55

Pofential 1ssues of ordinary shares
Certain employees and franch:sees hold optrons to subscnibe for shares in the Company &t prices ranging from Nil to 496p under six share ophion schemes
approved by shareholders between 2001 and 2007, as follows

Year of Exercise Exercise 2008 2007

Scheme grant price period Numbers Numbers
Sharesave scheme 2004 - 2007 360p-436p 01080710 010312 315,268 365,241
New execulive 2001 share optton scheme 2001 - 2002 364p-418p 0512040310512 90,626 106,694
Franchise option scheme 2002 2002 380p 120705101207 12 19,735 103,386
LTIP 2005 - 2007 NIl 2405081031217 1,065,495 856 566
One-aoff semor executive award 2006 NIl 230509 te 2306 09 220,000 220,000
Share matching plan 2004 - 2007 il 1611070051210 49,917 3740
1,761,041 1,655,627

Employee share ownership trust

The Company's Employee Share Ownership Trust holds shares in the Company for subsequent transfer to employees under the Long Term Incentive Plan Shares
held by the Trust are not veled at sharehelder meetings and do not accrue divdends Al 31 March 2008, the trust held a total of 624,817 shares (2007 414,252
shares) All other shares carry voting nghts and accrue divdends

During the year the Trust purchased 210,565 ordinary shares of 10p, at an average cost of £4 75, funded by a cash contnbution from the Company
Share-based payments

I order to align the interests of employees and franchisees with those of shareholders, share aptions are awarded to both employees and franchisees under
discretionary share incentive plans, and employees under all-employee share plans, as follows

Employee share ophion scheme

Awards under the employee share option scheme were made between 1993 and 2000, exercisable within 3 - 10 years of the grant date Exercise of an opbion
15 subject to continued employment, with settlement in the form of shares

Sharesave plan

The Company has offered a SAYE share plan since 1996 to ehgible employees, Including directors The plan 1 an Infand Revenue approved all-employee share
plan The Inland Revenue does not permit performance conditiens to be attached to the exercise of ophions Under the plan, parhicipants are granted opliens
over Ihe Company's shares Each parlicipant may save up to £250 per month o purchase shares in the Company at a discount For the 2007 grant, the discount
was 20% of the market value a the ime the optien was granted

New executrve 2001 share oplion scheme

Awards were madg under an exgcutive share ophion scheme hetween 2001 and 2003 to employees at sentor management levet and above, exercisable within 3 - 10 years
of the grant dale Options were granted with a fixed exercise price equal fo the market pnce of the shares under aption at the date of the grant

Options granted under the executive share option scheme are exercisable on the shird anmversary of the data of grant, subject to the condition that the growth
i the Campany's earings per share exceeds the increase m the index of retail pnces irom the date of grant by mare than 3% p a

Additionally, exercise of an option 18 subject to continued employment, with settlement in the form of shares
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Franchise share ophon scheme

The iranchise share option scheme was introduced in 2002 Under the scheme the Remuneration Committee can grant options over shares i the Company to
franchisees of the Company Options are granted with a fixed exercise price equal to the market price of the shares under opbion ai the date of the grant The
contractual e of an option 15 3 - 10 years Awards under the scheme are generally reserved for franchisees who have mef operational performance cntena n
the year pngr to the award and currently there are 2 franchises participating

Options granted under the franchise share option scheme are exercisable on the third anniversary of the date of grant, subject to the condition that the growth
in the Company's earmings per share exceeds the increase n the index of retail pnces from the date of grant by more than 3% p a

Additionally, exercise of an option s subject to a continued franchisee refatronship, with settlement in the form of shares
Long term incentive plan ("LTIP")

Following a decision by the Remuneratian Commuttee an LTIP was infroduced in 2004, as a more effective means of incentvising the Company's senior
management {han the executive share ophien scheme Under the LTIP the Remuneration Commuttee can grant aptions aver shares n the Company ¢ employees
of the Company, with a contractual hife of an oplon baing 3 - 10 years

2005 Awards

Awards may be exercised determined primanky by reference to the Company's Total Shareholder Return {TSR") performance over a penod of 3 years Under
this condibion, the Company's TSR 1s measured againsi the TSR of all the other companies in the Support Services sector listed in the FTSE All Share Index at
the start of the financial year i which an award 15 granted over a penod of 3 inancial years The proportion of the award which may be exercised depends upon
the ranking of the Company's TSR, whereby 10% of shares may be exercised «f the Company achieves median ranking, nsing pro-raia to 100% if the Company's
ranking falls within the top 10% No shares are exercisable if the Company’s ranking 1s below the median

The exercise of awards s also subject 1o the condition that the growth in the Company's earnings per share shall exceed the inciease in the index of retail prices
from the date of grant by more than 3% pa

Additionally, exercise of an option 1s subject to continued employment, with settlement in the form of shares
2006 and 2007 awards

In order to pravide the Remuneratian Cameitiee with flexibility to offer campetitve awards te semor executives, shareholder approval was sought and granted
at the Annval General Meeting held on 11 July 2006 1o amend the perormance conditions applying to al! future LTIP awards

40% of an Award 1$ subject o a performance condition based on the annual earnings per share (EPS) growth For the awards in 2007, 25% (of the 40%) will
vest for growth of 15% p a over the three year penod from 2007 to 2010, with 100% vesting for growth of 20% p a over that penod

60% of an award is determined by the TSR performance of the Company relative 1o all the other companies in the FTSE All Share Index (excluding Investment
Trusts) at the start of the financial year in which an award s granted over a penod of 3 financial years The proportion of the award which may be exercised
depends upon the ranking of the Company’s TSR, whereby 25% (of the 60%) of shares may be exercised if the Company achieves median ranking, nising pro-
rata to 100% if the Company's ranking falls within the top quartile No shares are exercisable if the Company's ranking (s below the median

Oneg-off semor execitive award

Foltowing a recommendation of the Remuneration Committee and subsequent shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeiing held on 11 July 2006, a
ane-off award was made over 220,000 shares 1o the Chief Executive and Group Finance Director The performance conditions attached to these awards were
designed to incentvise and reward the achigvernent of exacting performance cniteria, above and beyond those required under the normal LTIP Specifically, the
extent o whneh these awards will vest wall be determuned by the Company's EPS 1n 2009 relative to the budgeted EPS foi 2007

The awards will begin o vest for EPS growth in excess of 15% pa pro-rata to 100% vesting for growth of 20% pa  Addionally the Largets are expressed as
growth from the budgeted 2007 EPS higure {rather than the Actual 2006 result) in order fo ensure that the targels are more challenging than those under the
UT1P This condition means that the minmum EPS value required s 2009 for these awards to vesl 1s higher than the EPS value required in that year for the
maximum LTIP award to vest

The base for these awards was amended i the year to take account of the loss of the Federal Express contract The targets for tis scheme remamn more
demanding than those for the normal LTIP scheme
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Share matching plan (“SMP)

In 2004 the Remuneration Committee introduced a SMP designed to further align the interests of certain imvited executives lo long-term shareholders Under
the rules, selected executives may be imaited to (nvest a proportion of their cash bonus in the acquisition of Company shares up to 25% of therr pre-tax salary
Where such an investment 1s made, the exgcutives will recemve a grant of a matching award over shares in the Company with an equivalent value, which may
be exercised betwsen 36 and 42 months following the date of grant

The proportien of the award which may be exercised depends upen the growth in the Company's earnings per share and I1s subject t¢ a mimmum growth of 4%
pa above the index of retail pnices ("RPI") over the three year performance peniod One third of the award may be exercised if growth 15 1n excess of RPI growth
by 12% over the penod, two thirds if growth is 1n excess by 15%, and in full If growth exceeds RPI growth by 18% over the penod The awards lapse if the
mimmum condition 1s not achieved at the end of the three year performance penod

Exercise of an ophion 1s subject to continued employment, with sattlement sn the form of shares
Phantom share option bonus scheme

The Company offered a phantom share option bonus scheme to Bill Cockburn to ingentivise him in the growth of UK Ma:l The bonus payable 1s determined
primarily by reference to the profit of UK Mail Ltd in its third full financial year of trading 1 e year ended 31 March 2008

Under the rules, where profil 15 between £4 million and £10 mifhon there will be a 40% to 100% pro-rata entitlement fo the boaus, with no payrment where
profits are lower than £4 million As the PBIT of UK Maif Lt was £10m, Bill Cockburn (s entitied to the maximum 100% payout

The maxmum bonus entitiement will be the fugher of £400,000 or a bonus calcutated by reference to a nobional holding of 200,000 ordinary shares in the
Company acquired at the average middle market pnice in the five dealing days immediately preceding 12 March 2002, and valued at the average rmiddie market
price in the five dealing days immediately following the announcement of the Company's financiai results for the year ended 31 March 2008

Exercise of an option 15 subject to conbinued employment, save for termination esther by the Company or due to 1l health, incapacity or death Settliement s i
the form of cash

Calculation of fair values

For equity-settled share-based transactions, fair values of share options awarded in the financial year are measured at the date of grant of the option using a
share pricing optien medel Where the model 1s dependent on the Company's TSR aver a period the Monte Carlo model 1s used, in atl other circumstances
the Black-Scholes model 1s used Non-market conditions, such as the Company meeting earmings per share fargets, are net incorporated into the calculatson
of fair valug at the grant date but are reflected 1n the amount of cempensation expense accrued over the vesting penod The expected life of options depends
on the behaviour of option holders, which 1s incorporated nto the option model consistent with histonc observable data

For cash-settled share-based transactions, fair values of share options awarded in the financial year are measured at each balance sheet date at the fair valug
of the liability, with all ¢hanges immediately recogrised in the Income Statement Non-market conditions, such as the Company meeting earmings targets, are
not incorporated o the calcutation of fair valuz at the grant date but are reflected in the amount of corpensation expense accrued over the vesting penod
The expected life of options is determined by reference to the contractual terms

The far values calculated are inherently subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made and the imitations of the optien-pncing madel vsed The
signtficant assumptions used to estimate the fair vatue of the oplions granted in the financial year are as follows

Share

Maiching
TP LTIP LTIP LT Plan SAYE
Grant date 4/6/2007 18772007  20/11/2007 3/12/2007 4/6/2007 77972007
Share price at grant date £474 £4 83 £208 £275 £474 £474
Exercise price - - - - - £362
Number of employees 45 2 1 1 3 228
Number of shares granted 478,939 4,501 18,272 20,370 47, N7 165,453
Vesting penod (years) 3 3 3 3 3 3
Expected volati iy 373% 393% 439% 44 6% - 37 0%
Option Iife (vears) 10 10 3 10 3 3
Expected Iife (years) 3 3 3 3 3 3
Risk iree interest rate 58% 58% 45% 495% 58% 51%
Expected dwidends expressed as a dwdend yield 36% 36% 58% 6 3% 36% 36%
Fair value per option £316 £334 £157 £135 £424 £163
Expected forfetture (%) 300% 300% 30 0% 30 0% 00% 300%

The nsk-free rate was determined from the UX gilts zero-coupen yield curve: The expecled volaliiny 1s estmated by constdering the Company's histonc average
share price volatility over similar periods to the expected Iife of the opfion under considerattan in addshon, the expecled dividend yield was based at Lhe
prevailing rates at each of the grants A reconcihation of option movements over the year to 31 March 2008 15 shown on the following page
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2008 2007
Weighted Weighted
average average
2008 exercise 2007 EXErcise
Number price Number pnce
Qutstanding as at 1 Apnl 1,655,627 £1 42 2,102,768 £322
Granted 735,451 £0 81 998,220 £075
Forferted (553,670) £1380 (1,376,943) £357
Exercised {76,367) £3 98 (66,418) £372
Qutstanding as at 31 March 1,761,041 £0 94 1,655,627 £142
Exercisable at 31 March 110,361 £4 07 156,238 £408
Options are exercisable as follows
2008 2007
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average
Weighted remaining  remaining Weighled femaining remarming
average ife lite: average life Ife
Range of exercise Number expected  confracted eXercISe Mumber expected contracted
exercise prices price of shares years years pnce ol shares years years
£0 00 - £0 99 £000  1,335412 19 1 £000 1,080 306 22 74
£100-£199 - - - - - - - -
£200-£299 - - - . - - - -
£300-£399 £3 66 300,727 23 29 £375 339,024 22 29
£400-£499 £4 45 124,902 08 32 £451 218,037 17 48
£500-£599 - - - - £575 18,260 17 B2

The weighted average share price during the year for options exercised was £4 61 (2007 £4 49) The total charge for the year relating to employee share-based
payments was £1 3m (2007 £1 0m), £1 1m of which related 1o equity-settled share-based payment transactions and £0 2m to cash-settled share-based

transachions After deferred tax, the net charge was £1 1m {2007 £0 7m)

25 Reconciliahion of proht to net cash flow generated from operations

Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Profi/(loss) for the year 97 69 (03) 04
Taxation 45 29 (01) (04
Finance cests payable 07 07 04 04
Finance income recervable (04) (IR )] (D 3) -
Exceptional items - 17 - -
Depreciation and amortisation 58 60 - -
Share-based payments 13 09 -
{Increase)/dacrease In inventones (01} - - -
{Increase)/decrease mn trade and other recesvables {(33) (2 5) (207) 67
Increase in frade and other payables 72 119 243 160
Increase/(decrease) in provisians 02 )] - -
Net cash flow generated from operatians 257 282 33 223
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26 Derivalives and other financial instruments
Short term receivables and payables
Shart term debtors and creditors have been excluded, s management consider the fair value to be the same as the book value
Interest rate risk profile of financia! liabilties

The mterest nsk prodile of the Group's financial liabilibes at 31 March 2008 was

2008 2007
Floating Floating
rate rate
Book value financlal Book value financial
total liahilties total Iizbelties
fm £m £m £m
Term lean 60 60 70 70
Provisions 16 16 13 13
76 76 43 83

The nterest rate an the term loan 15 based on a (loating rate linked to the London Inter Bank Offer Rate ("LIBOR"} A separate interest rale cap exisls 10 reduce
exposure to fluctuations in the LIBOR rate, ensunng that the interest exposure 1s capped ai 6 0% untid 31 July 2008, when the cap expires Given that the Group
has no plans to renew this instrument, and that the mterest rate on the loan benefits fram any interest rate reductions when LIBOR 15 less than 6 0%, the loan

hias been disclosed as a floating rate financial habihity

All fmancial labilities are sterling denominated

All the Group’s creditors falling due within ane year {other than bank and other borrowings) are excluded from the above table either due to the exclusion of

short term items or because they do not meet the definition of a financial hability, such as tax balances
Maturity profile of financial liabillties

The matunty profile of the carrying amount of the Group's non-curend financiat iabilibies at the end of the year was as follows

2008 2007

Other Other

Group financial Group financial
debt Nabilities Total clett labilities Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Between one and two years 10 08 18 10 10 20
Between two and five years 30 25 55 30 23 53
Alter five years 10 06 16 20 17 37
50 39 89 60 50 110

Other financial liabilties compnse finance leases (note 20) and provisions (note 22) Credilors due within ong year are excluded from the above table as they

are of a short term nature
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Borrowing facilities
The Group has undrawn borrowing factlies of £12m (2007 £12m) These facilities are m place until 31 December 2008
Fair value of tmancial assets and liabilties

The following iable provides a compansen by category of the camying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial assets and liabiities at 31 Margh 2008
and 2007 Farr value 1s the amount at which a financial ensirument could be exchanged 1n an arm's length transachion between informed and willing parties,
other than a forced or liquidabion sale and excludes accrued interest Where avarlable, market valugs have been used to determune fair values Where market
valugs are not available, fair values have been calculated by discounting expected cash flows at prevaihng interest rates Set out betow 1$ a summary of the
methods and assumptions used for each category of financial instrument

2008 2007
Book value Fair value Book value Far value
£m £m tm Em
Primary financial imstrument held or issued to finance the
Group's aperations
Short term barrowings (10) {10} {(10) (10}
Long term borrowings (50) (50} (60} (60}
Finance leases (42) (40) (49) (53)
Cash at bank and 1n hand 164 164 120 120

Derivative frnanctal instruments

An interest rate cap agreement, expinng on 31 July 2008, with interest capped at 6%, was taken out dunng 2004 1o mimmise exposure to ncreases in the
floating rate of interest on the term toan (note 20) The Group does not have any plans to renew this instrument on 1is expiry

Summary of methods and assumptions

Interest rate cap Fair value 1s based on the market price of comparable instruments at the balance sheet date

Long term borrowings The fair value of the bank loan appraximates to the value reported In the balance sheet since 1t carmes
a floating rate where payments are reset to market rates at intervals 1ess than one year

Finance leases Fair value ts hased by discounting the cash flows at prevailing interest rates

Hedges

As explained in the Business Review section of the Report and Accounts, entitied *Treasury Risk Management" the Group's palhicy 1s o hedge any significant
interest rate risk through using an interest rate cap

There are no unrecognised gains or lesses ansing from the above hedge which have not been charged to the income statement duning the year
Financial instruments held for trading purposes

The Group does not trade in financial instruments

Currency analysis of monetary net assels

The only monetary assets or habilities that are denominated in a foreign currency are eura bank account balances of £19,000 (2007 £16,000)
Credil quality of financtal assets

Cash at bank and shori-term deposits 1s he!d at counterparties with external credif ratings (Maody's) of

2008 2007
£m £m
AAA 164 120

60 Business Post Group ple




Notes to the Financial Statements

27 Operating lease commitments - minimum lease payments

28

29

30

Group Group

2008 2007
Vehitles, Vehicles,
Land and plant and Land and plant and
buildings equipment buildings equipment
£m £m £m fm

Commitments under non-cancellable operaling leases expiring

Within one year 05 18 37 61
Later than one year and less than five years 66 87 115 74
After five years 160 73 76 -
At 31 March 231 178 228 135

The Group leases various properttes under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases have vanious terms, escalabion clauses and renewal nghts
The Group also leases vehucles and office equipment under non-cancelfable operating lease agreements

The Company had no operating lease commitments during the year (2007 nil)
The tofal future sub-lease payments receivable relaling te the above operating leases amounted 1o Sml {2007 £21,000)
Contingent liabilitres

The Company has guaranteed bank and other borrowings of subsidiary undertakings in a cross-guarantee agreement on an undrawn Group borrowing facility
amounting to £12m (2007 £12m)

Capital and other financial commitments
Group
2008 2007
fm £m
Contracts placed for future capital expenditure not provided in the financeal stalements 05 16
Analysis of net (debt)/cash
Group
At 1 Apnl At t Apnl At 31 March
2006 Cash Flow Other 2007 Cash Flow Other 2008
£m £m £m £m £m fm £m
Cash at bark and n hand - 120 - 120 44 - 164
Bank overdrafts {0 4) 04 - - - - -
{04) 124 - 120 44 - 164
Debt due within one vear (10 10 (10) {10} 10 (10) {10}
Debt due after one year {7 0) - 10 (60) - 10 {50)
Finance leases {12) - (37) (4 9) 07 - {42)
92) 10 {37} {119) 17 - (10 2)
Net (debt)/cash (g 6) 134 (37) {01) 61 - 62
Company
A1 Apnl At 1 Apnl At 31 March
2006 Cash Flow Other 2007 Cash Flow Other 2008
£m fm £m £m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and n hand - 80 - 80 (78) - 02
Bank overdrafts (3 8} 38 - - - - -
(38) 18 - 80 (78 - 02
Debt due within one year (10) 10 (10) (10) 10 {1 0} (10)
Debt due after one year (70} - 10 {60) - 10 {50)
(8 0) 10 - {70) 10 - {6 0)
Met (debt)/cash (11 8} 128 - 10 {68 . {58)
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33

Related parly transactiors

P Kang, a director of the company, and members of his close family and certain farmily trusts, the beneficearies of which are persons connecied with P Xane,
control dirgetly and mdirectly 45 8% of the 1ssued share capital of the Company In addiion, his brother M Kane controls a further 12 8% of the 1ssued share
capital of the Company

Key management compensation Is disclosed in note 6
There were no related party transactions invelving the Directors, other than as disclosed in the Remuneration Report
The balances outstanding at 31 March 2008 between the Company and other Group compamies were as follows

2008 2007
£m £m

Current
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 722 513
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings (50 6) (26 1)

Movements in these balances largely compnse of inter-company funding
Past balance sheet events

The directars are proposing a final dwidend in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2008 of 10 8p per share, which if approved will be paid an 25 July
2008 1o shareholders who are on the register of members on 27 June 2008

Principal subsidiaries

The Company has the following principat whelly owned trading subsidraries, all operating within the United Kingdom

Percentage of

nominal value

of erdinary

Country of shares held by

Subsichiary Nature of Business mneorparation the Group
Business Post Ltd Parcel and express mail collection and deflivery services England 100%
UK Mal Lid Collectson and detivery of business mail England 100%
UK Pallets Ltd Collect:on and dehvery services for palletised goods England 100%

The Company holds 100% of the vohing nghts of each of the above subsidianies

The dinancral results of all of the subsidianes listed above are included within the consolidated report and accounts
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34 Cniical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group's accounting policies are set out in note 1to these financial statements Management 1s required to exercise significant judgement in the application
of these policies Areas which management believes require the mosi ¢riacal accounting judgements are as follows (apart from those policies involving
estimation which are outhned n (b} below)

a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies
Excepiional items

The Directors consider that items of income or expense which are matenal by virtue of ther nature and amount shoutd be disclosed separately if the financial
statements are o fasrly present the financial performance of the Group The Directors label these ttems collectively as ‘exceptional lems'

Deterrmining which iransactions are 1o be considered exceplional 1s often a subjective matter However, circumnstances that the Directars believe would give rise
to exceptional tems, requinng separate disclosure would include,

(1) loss or cessation of a malenial contract representing 5% or move of the Group's revenues,

(ny disposal of fixed assets where the profit or loss represents 5% or more of the Group's profil before tax,
(i) disposal of mvestments,

() organisatonal or restructunng programmes

Leases

In deterrining whether a lease 1s a finance lease or an operating lease, management 1s required 10 evaluate where the substantiat nisks and rewards restde
Where managament concfude that the arrangement constiiutes a finance lease, then it 1s necessary to both calculate the proportion of the payment which should
be treated as finance cos! and capial repayment, and to judge the likely penod of use ai the inceplion of the agreement

b} Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Useful economic lives of property, planl and equipment

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1s charged 50 a3 1o wnite down the value of those assets to ther residual value over thewr respective useful lves
The Directors are required to assess both the useful economic lives of the assets so that depreciation 1s charged on a systemalic and proportionale basts, ang
the probable residual values

Recoverability of trade and franchise receivahles

Trade and franchise receivables are recorded net of provistons for bad debts and credd notes |n evaluating the required provision, the Directors consider deblor
specific circumstances, 1n addiion 1o histongal irends

Goodwill impairment

Goodwil impairment 1s tested for at least annually, by calculating the estimated recoverable amount from each cash generating umit (CGUY) on a valug-in-use
basis In performeng the test management needs to assess and consider,

{1} the Iikely sales and cost growth assumptions used by the CGU,

{n) the sector specific short- and long-term growth rates, as well as that in the UK economy as a whole,
{in) the pre-tax discount rate appheable to the Company

Provisions

The Group has provided for the estimated cost of making good properties on cessation of the lease This requires the Directers to make an assessment cf the
potential cost of the work as al ihe reporting dale However, these costs will not be immediately incurred and on an ongoing basis, ihe Group maintains Its
properties through a programme of repair and renewal which may resull in changes required in the carrying value of these prowisions
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Financial Risk Management

Foreign exchange nsk

The Group 1s not significantly exposed to the effects of fluctuations i exchange rales since afl income 15 1n sterling and costs denominated n foreign currency,
pnncipally the euro, represent less than 1% of all expenditure

Market risk

Overall, since ihe vast majonty of the Group's activibes are provided to UK businesses, the fortunes of the Group are hinked to the general health of the UK
economy The Group's exposure 15 hmited by being spread across a wide range of customers No customer accounts for more than 5% of revenue
Regulatory risk

The UK mail markel 1s regulated by the Postal Services Commission (‘Postcomm'}, under the Postal Services Act 2000 Thew key job 1s to ensure that licensed
postal operators, including Royal Mail megt the needs of their customers throughout the UK As such, they have responsibility {or ficensing postal operators
{for marl costing less than £1 to deliver and weighing less than 350 grams), and for ensuning that competition exists in the mail market

Cred:t risk

The Group has no significant cencentration of credit nisk The Group has implemented policy that require appropriate credit chacks an potential customners before
sale commences and strict credit control of outstanding amaounts Trade credit insurance 1s employed {o protect any significant exposure to bad debis

Interest rate risk
The Group has both interest-bearing assets and interest-beanng hiabilities As at the balance sheet date these largely compnse of the following

2008 2007
Assetfliability Interest accrues on fm £m
Cash at bank and i hand Floating rate linked to base rates 16 4 i20
Bank loan Floating rate linked to LIBOR * {60) (T0)
Finance leases Fixed rate at incephion of the lease (42) (49

* A 6% interest cap agreement exsts uniil 31 July 2008

The reported results would not have been matenally different hag market interest rates been 0 5% adverse/favourable throughout the financial year, with all other
varnables held constant

Price risk

Fuel 1s a significant cost to the Group, although it constitutes less than 4% of total costs Price nisk 15 mimmised as sigmificant increases in the fuel price can
be passed onto customers wia a fuet surcharge mechamsm common throughout the express delivery industry

Liquidity risk

The Board reviews bath the lang and short-term financing requirements of the Group to ensure that there are sufficient available funds both for the day-to-day
operations of the Group and for planned capital investments

At the year end, the Group had undrawn borrowing facihities of £12m under a facility expinng 3t December 2008

Camtal risk

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's abiliy to continue as a going concern in order 1o provide returns for shareholders
and benelits for other stakeholders and to mainiain an eptimal capital struciure to reduce the long-term cost of capial

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amouni of dwidends paid 1o shareholders, relurn capital to shareholders, 15sue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt




Five Year Summary of Results

IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS UK GAAP
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Notes £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 358 6 3256 2782 2333 1927
Gost of sales (306 6) (275 6) (231 4) (1847) (149 6)
Gross profit 520 500 468 486 431
Administrative expenses (a} {b) (37 5) (396) M7 (287 (74 4)
Operating profit 145 104 51 199 187
Net finance costs (03) {06} 04 {03) -
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 142 98 a7 196 187
Taxation (a) (45) (29) 13 {59) 61)
Profit for the financial year 97 69 34 137 126
Earmings per share - basic 18 0p 128p 6 4p 256p 238p
Dvidends per share (c) 172p 172p 19 2p 18 5p 18 0p

The calculalion of earnings per share for the five years ended 31 March 2008 (s based on the following weighted numbars of shares in 1ssus

31 March 2008 54,068,346
31 March 2007 54,150,544
31 March 2006 53,962,493
31 March 2005 53,586,502
31 March 2004 53,155,846

Notes

The table above presents the results of the Group under IFRS for the years ended 31 March 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008 As permitted by [FRS 1, 'First ime adoption
of Internatsonal Financial Reporting Standards!, the results for the year ended 31 March 2004 have not been restated from UK GAAP existing at that time to IFRS In
osder to comply with IFRS, we belreve that the principal adjustments that would be required to restate LIK GAAP results to IFRS are,

{a) Under IFRS, the costs ¢f all share-hased payments including employee sharesave schemes are recogrised whereas, under UK GAAR only awards granted at a
discount to the market were recognised with sharesave specifically exempted Additionally, the recognition of an accounting share-based payment cast under IFRS
necessitates the recognition of an associated deferred taxalion asset, which 1s charged to the income statement, or where apphicable, directly to equity

{b} Under IFRS, goodwil 1s not amortised, but 1 subject to an annual impairment review The Company has applied the exemption not to restate its business
combinations prior to the transition date, and consequently goodwill previously writien off to reserves has not been restated

{c) Under IFRS, dividends payable are recogmsed in the penod tn which they are approved, rather than the period i which they were declared as was required under
UK GAAP As a esult the above table includes the 12 05p final dividend 1 respect of the year ended 31 March 2004 i both the year ended 31 March 2004 UK GAAP
figures, and the year ended 31 March 2005 figures
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Notice of Meeting

Notice 15 hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Busiess Post Group ple will be held at Dresdner Kleinwort 30 Gresham Street London EC2P 2XY at 12

noon on 8 July 2008 for the purposes of considenng and, if thought fit, passing the following resotutions of which Resolutions 1 ta 8 as ordinary resolutions and
Resolutions 9 to 11 as special resolutions

Ordinary business

1 To recerve the directors’ report and the accounts for the year ended 31 March 2008 Resolution 1
2 To declare a final dividend of 10 8p net per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2008, payable to shareholders on 25 July 2008 Resolution 2
who are on {he register on 27 June 2008
3 To approve the remuneration report of the directors Resolution 3
4 To re-elect Michael Kane as a director Resolution 4
5 To re-elect Bill Cockburn as a director Resolution 5
6 To re-etect Steven Glew as a director Resolution 6
7 Te re-appoint the audrors, PncewaterhouseCoopers LLR and to authonse the diwectors to determine the auditors' remuneration Resolution 7

Special business

8 That

Resolution 8

B 1 the directors be and they are hereby generally and uncondihanally authonsed for the purposes of section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 (*the Act") fo
exgrcise all the powers of the Company to allot relevant secuniies (within the meaning of section 80(2) of the Act) up to a maximurm aggregate nominal amount
of £1,532,576 prowided that this autharrty shall (unless previously revoked or vaned by the Company in general megting) expire at the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company after the passing of this resolution save that the Company may before such expiry make an offer or agraement which
would or might require retevant securities to be alloited after such expiry and the directors may allot relevant securities v pursuance of such an offer or
agreement as 1f the authonty conierred hereby had not expired, and

8 2 the authonty heseby conferred upon the directors replaces the authenty confesred upon the direclors pursuant to the resolution passed by shareholders of the
Company on 10 July 2007 prowided that such replacement shall not have retrospective effect

g That

Resoluticn 9

§ 1 the directors be and they are heseby empowered to allof equity secunities (within the meaning of section 94 of the Companies Act 1985 (“the Act™)) wholly
for cash pursuant to the authonty conferred on the directors by resalution 8 contained n the notice of the Annual General Meeting of the Company of which
tins resolution forms pari as if sub-section (1) of sechion 8% of the Act did not apply 10 any such allotment prowided that this power shall be mited to

911

the allotment of equity secunties in connection with a nights 1ssue open offer or atherwise in favour of ardinary sharehotders where the equity securities

respectively aitributable to the interests of all ordinary shareholders are proportionate (as nearly as may be) to the respeckive number of ordinary shares

held by them and for the purposes of this resolution "nghts 1ssue’ means an offer of equity securihies open for acceptance for a persod fixed by the

directors to

(a) holders on the register on a fixed record date of ordinary shares n proportion ta therr respective holdings, and

(b} halders en the regrster on a fixed record date of other equity secunities to the extent expressly required or (if considered appropnate by the
directors) permitied by the rights attached theseto,

but subject to such exclusions o7 other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary or expedient in relakon to fractional entittements or legal

or prachical problems under the laws of, or the requrements of, any regulatory body or any stock exchange or otherwise in any terniory, and

the alloiment {otherwise than pursuant (o paragraph & 1 1 above) of equity secunties up to an aggregate nominal value of £273,371

and shall {unless previously revoked or vaned by the Company in general meeting} expere on the easlier of 9 October 2009 or the conclusion of the

next Annual General Meeting ¢of the Company after the passing of tius resolulion save that the Company may before such expiry make an offer

or agreement which would or might require equily secunties to be allotied after such expiry and the directors may allot equity securiies in pursuance

of such offer or agreement as If the power conferred hereby had not expired, and

92 all authornitres conlerred under sestion 95 of the Compan:es Act 1985 pnor o the date of this Annual General Meeting be and they are hereby revoked
prowided that such revocation shall ngt have retrospective effect

10 That pursuant to Article 9 of the Campany’s Asticles of Association and Section 166 of the Campanies Act 1985, the Company be Resolution 10
and 15 hereby authonsed {o make market puschases of ordinary shares of 10p each i the capital of the Company prowded that

101 the maomum number of ordinary shares hereby authonsed fo be purchased 1s 5,467,423,

102 the mimimum pnce which may be paid far each erdinary share 1s 10 pence per ordinary share which amount shall be exclusive of expenses,

103 the maamum price which may be paid for each ordinary share 1s, n respect of an ordinary share contracted to be purchased on any day, an amount
{exclusive of expenses) equal to 105% of the average of the mid-market quotateons far an ordinary share of the Company as derved from the Daily Official
List of the London Stock Exchange for the five business days irmmediately preceding the day on whech the ordiary share 15 contracted to be purchased,

104 the authaniy hereby conferred shall expise on the earlies of 9 October 2009 or the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company after
the date of passing this resolution unless such authonty 1s renewed prior 1o such time, nd

105  the Company may conclude a conlract to purchase ordinary shares under the authonty hereby conferred prior 1o the expiry of such authonity which will or
may be exercised wholly or parlly after the expiry of such authonty and may make a purchase of ordinary shares in pursuance of any such confract as if
the authonity hereby conferred had not expired
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11 That the Articles of Assotiation of the Company be and are hereby amended as follows Resolution 11

111 by insering ihe following new Article 701 5
“70 1 Sshall not infinge or be in breach of his dulres {o the Company by reason of any such inferest  This Article 70 1 5 shall take effect when Article
70A shall take effect "
112 by nserting the following new Article 70 4
“T04 This Article 70 s subject to the prowisions of Articte 70A (as from when Articte 70A shall take effect)
113 by nserting the folfowing new Article 704
“70A  Authonisation of Directors” Interests
70A 1 Thes Article 70A shall take effect on and from the commencement i force of Section 175 of the Companies Ack 2006
70A 2 The Drectors may authense, to the fullest extent pesmitted by law

{0} any matter which would or might otherwise result in a Diregtor infringing his duty to avoid a siuat:on m which he has, or ¢an have, a direct
or indirect interest that canfhcts, or possibly may conflict, with the interests of the Company and which may reasonably be regarded as hkely
to give nse to a conflict of interest (including a confhct of interest and duty or a conilict of duties),

{n) a Durector to accept or continue 1n any office, employment or position i addition to his office as a thrector of the Company and without
prejudice 1o the generality of this Article 70A 2 may authorise the manner in which a conflict of interest ansing out of such office, employment
or position may be dealt with, either before or at the time that such a conflict of interest anses

70A3 An authonsation under Article 704 2 may be given subject 1o such terms and conditions as the Direciors think fit i 1mpose at the tme of
such avthonsatien or subsequently and the authonisation may be varied or terminated by the Directors at any tme

70A 4 An authonsation under Arficle 70A 215 only effective 1f any requirement as to the quorum of the meeting s met without the Director 1n question
and any other interested Director counting in the quorum at any meeting at which such maiter, or such office, employment or posiion, 15
approved and ihe authorisation 15 agreed to without their voting or would have been agreed to if thew voles had not been counted

70A 5 If a matter, or office, employment or position, has been authorised by the Directors tn accordance with this Article 70A {and subject to Article
T0A 3) then

(1) the Director shall not be required e disclose any confidential information relating te such matter, or such office, employment or pesibon, to
the Company 1 to make such a disclosure would result in a breach of a duty or obligation of confidence owed by m in relation to or in
connection with that matter, or that office, amployment or positign,

(1) the Derector may {and shall if required by the Directors) absent himself from meetings or discussions of the Directors at which anything relating
to that matier, or that effice, employment or position, will or may be discussed, and

() the Director may (and shall if required by the Directors) degling to review information provided by the Company which will or may relate to or
be connecied to that matter, or that ofice, employment or position

70A 6 A Drector shafl not, by reason of his office, be accountable to the Company for any benefit which he derves frem any matter, or from any
office employment or position, which has been appraved by the Directors pursuani to this Article 70A (subject in any such ¢ase to any terms
or condhitrons to which such approval is for the time being subject)
70A7 This Article 15 without prejudice to the operation of Article 70 '
114 By nserting the following as the final sentence of Article 88
“A Director sha!l not be counted i the quorum present in relation to any matter or reselution an which he is not entitied to vote but shall be counted in
the querum present in relation to all other matters and resofutiens considered or voted on at the meeting
115 by deleting the followang words from Article 901
“A Director shall nol be counted in the quorum at a meeting in velation to any resolution on which he is debarred from voting”
116 By inserting into Artscle 90 2, immediately after the words “Subject to the previsions of the Statutes”, the words “and subject to Aricle 704,

By order of the Board

Steven Glew
Company Secretary
20 May 2008
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Noles

1 THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION If you are 1n any doubt as to the action you should take, you should consult
your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other professtonal adwiser authonised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 immediately

2 Ifyou have sold or transferred all your ordinary shares in Business Post Group pic, please send this document and the enclosed form of proxy to the stockbroker,
or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected, for transmission to the purchaser or transleree

3 Explanatory statements relating to special business of the Annual General Meelting are contaned in the Directors’ Report under the headings Annuat General
Meeling - special business

4 A member entilled 10 attend and vote af the Annual General Meeting 1s entitled to appo:nt one ¢r more proxies 1o attend and, on a poll, to vote nstead of im
Such proxy or proxies need net be a member of the Campany Details of how to appot the chairman of the meeting or another person as your proxy using the
form of proxy are set out in the notes on the ferm of proxy  1f you wish your proxy to speak on your behalf al the meeting you will need to appoint yeur own choice
of proxy (not the chairman) and give your instructions directly to them You may appont more than one proxy provided each proxy 1s appointed to exercise nghts
altached to different shares  You may not appeint more than one prosy to exercise nghts attached to any ane share  To appoint more than ong proxy, (an) additional
form(s} of proxy may be obtained by contacting Equinite Limited on 0871 384 2799 Please indicatz 1 the box next ta the proxy holder s name the number of
shares m relabion Yo whech they are authorised to act as your proxy  Plaase also indicate by ticking the box provided 1f the praxy mstruction 1s one of multiple
Instrugtions being given  All forms must be signed and returned together in the same envelope You can only appoint a proxy using the procedures set out 1n
these notes and the notes 1o the form of proxy

5 Areply paid form of proxy 1s provided To be effective, a form of proxy must be completed, signed and (together with the onginal or a aotarially certified copy of
any power of attorney or other authonty under which it 1S executed) lodged at the Company's registrars, Equiniti Limited, Aspect Hause, Spencer Read, Lancing,
West Sussex, BN93 6DA not later than 48 hours before the ime of 1he meeling or any adjourned mesting or, in the case af a poll taken subsequently 1o the date
af the meeting or adjourned meeting, so as 1o be recerved no later than 24 hours before the time apponted for taking the poll Depositing a completed torm of
proxy will not preclude a member from attending the meeting and voting in person

6 There wifl be avallable for inspection at the registered office of the Company on any weekday (except Saturday) during normal business hours from the date of
this notice until the day of the Annual General Meeting and at the place of the Annual General Maeting for a perod of 15 minutes prior 1o and dunng the Annusal
General Meeting a copy of the proposed amended articles of associatson of the Company showing the changes being proposed i resolulion 11 as well as copies
of contracts of service between direclors and the Company, and the register of directors’ interests in shares of the Company

7 The Company, pursuant 1o Regulation 41 of the Uncertified Secunties Regulations 2001 specihies that only those shareholders registered 1n the register of
members of the Company as at 12 00 pm on 7 July 2008 shali be entitled to attend and vote al the aforasaid general meeting i respect of the number of shares
registered n their name at that time: Changes to entnies on the zelevant register of secunities after 12 00 pm en 7 July 2008 shall be disregarded in determining
the nght of any person to attend or vote at the mesting

8 Asat 19 May 2008 (being the fast business day pror to the publication of this notice), the Company's 1ssued share capital was 54,674,237 shares, carrying one
vote each Therefore, the total number of ordinary shares (n the Comgpany with voting nghis 1s 54,674,237

9 Any person to whem Ihis natice 1s sent who 1s 2 persen nominated under sectian 146 of the Companies Act 2006 to enjoy information nghts {a “Nominated
Person”) may, under an agreement between him/her and the member by whom he/she was norminated, have a nght to be appointed {or to have someone else
appointed) as a proxy for the meeting  If a Nominated Persen has ne such proxy appointment nght or does not wish to exercise it, he/she may, under any such
agreement, have a nght to give instruchions ta the shareholder as to the exercise of voting nghts

10 The statement of the rights of members in relation to the appointment of proxies 1n paragraphs 4 and 5 above does not apply to Nominated Persons  The rights
described n these paragraphs can only be exercised by members of the Company
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Financial Calendar

25 June 2008 Shares become ex dvidend

27 June 2008 Record date tor dmvidend

9 July 2008 Annual General Meeting

25 July 2008 Payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008

November 2008 Announcement of interim results and intenm dividend for the year ending 31 March 2009

January 2009 Payment of intenm dividend for the year ending 31 March 2009
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